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To

All Shareholders

Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission
Registrar of Joint Stock Companies and Firms
Dhaka Stock Exchange Ltd.

Chittagong Stock Exchange Ltd.

Dear Sir (s)

Annual Report for the year ended 30 June 2018

We are pleased to enclose a copy of the Annual Report together with the Audited
Financial Statements including Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit
or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and
Statement of Cash flows for the year ended 30 June 2018 along with notes thereon

for your kind information and record.

Yours sincerely

A

(Sohel Abdullah )
Company Secretary
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\t/ ' Core Value

For our Customer
To become most efficient Company by providing the most curteous and

efficient service in every areas of Bangladesh.

For our Employees

Promoting well-being of the members of the staff.

For our Shareholders

Ensuring fair return on their investment through generating stable profit.

For our Community
Assuming our role as socially responsible corporate entity in a tangible

manner through close adherence to national policies and objectives.



Our Vision

To ensure energy security in the country by uninterrupted
supply of quality petroleum products at government'’s fixed
price. To strengthen the supply of environmental-friendly and
excellence agrochemical products in order to increase the

nation-wide agricultural productions.
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Our Mission

@ To ensure adequate supply of fuels through purchasing,
stocking & distribution of petroleum products through out

the country with organized management system.

@& Development of petroleum related infrastructure.

@ Modernizing the marketing and operational activities of

the company.

@ To make creative business policy and diversification of

products according to market demand.

@ Undertaking necessary steps through import,
manufacturing, stock, distribution with organized
management system in order to supply agrochemical

products through out the country.
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Strategic Priority

To have sustained growth, broaden and improve range of products
and services in all areas of Bangladesh with the aim to add increased
value to shareholders' investment and offer highest possible benefit
to our customers.
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CORPORATE HEADQUARTER

RESIDENT OFFICE
MAIN INSTALLATION

YEAR OF INCORPORATION
BUSINESS LINE

LISTING STATUS
STOCK EXCHANGE LISTING

AUTHORIZED CAPITAL

PAID UP CAPITAL

NUMBER OF SHARES
NUMBER OF SHAREHOLDERS
NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

Company Profile

PADMA BHABAN, STRAND ROAD,
CHATTOGRAM - 4000, BANGLADESH

6 PARIBAGH, DHAKA, BANGLADESH
GUPTAKHAL, PATENGA

CHATTOGRAM, BANGLADESH

27 APRIL 1965

PROCUREMENT, STORAGE AND
MARKETING OF PETROLEUM PRODUCTS,
LUBRICATING & GREASES, BITUMEN, LPG
AND MANUFACTURING & MARKETING
OF AGROCHEMICAL PRODUCTS

PUBLIC LIMITED COMPANY

DHAKA STOCK EXCHANGE LTD.
CHITTAGONG STOCK EXCHANGE LTD.
1000 MILLION TAKA

982.33 MILLION TAKA

9,82,32,750

11,063

1,042
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Historical Events of POCL

Padma Oil Company Limited is not only the biggest but also the oldest with its antecedents stretching

well back to the colonial period of British-India. Its ancestral enterprise 'Rangoon Oil Company'

established petroleum business in this part of the world by the middle of nineteenth century. Following

is a Synopsis of Padma Oil Company Limited's historical background.

A

> > » > >

>

In 1874, Rangoon Oil Company was registered as a Joint stock company in Scotland having its main
business activites in Burma (Known to the British until the later years of the 19th century as
BURMAH, which was a province of the then British India)

In 1885, Rangoon Oil Company was reconstituted and reformed as Burmah Oil Company. Business
of this Company was then spread over other provinces of British-India including Assam and Bengal.
The Company's Head office was at 191 West George Street, Glasgow, U.K.

Burmah Oil Company for the first time introduced drilling equipments for exploration of oil in
Burma in the year 1888. Previously oil was being collected in Burma by hand dug well.

Burmah Oil Company established their 'Moheshkhal Oil Installation' at Chattogram in the year 1903.
In 1908, Burmah Oil Company conducted a geological survey in Chattogram.
In 1914, Burmah Oil Company drilled a well at sitakunda, Chattogram.

In the year 1920, M/s Bullock Brothers, a major distributor of Burmah Oil Company established their
trading office at Sadarghat, Chattogram.

In the year 1929, Burmah Oil Company took over the office of Bullock Brothers at Sadarghat,
Chattogram including 4.1 acres of land and established their own office in it.

Prior to the partition of the sub-continent in 1947, mainly two oil marketing companies namely
Burmah Oil Company (BOC) and Burmah shell Oil Storage and Distribution Company (BSOC) were
operating Petroleum business in the area what now comprise Bangladesh. Burmah Shell established
Aviation Depot at Tejgaon Airport in the year 1948.

Considering the Oil Marketing situation in erstwhile East Pakistan, Burmah Shell transferred their
share to BOC and in the year 1965 a new company called 'Burmah Eastern Limited' was formed with
49% share of BOC. The rest portion of the share was issued to public & private individuals of
Pakistan.

A In 1977, Burmah Eastern Limited became a subsidiary of Bangladesh Petroleum Corporation.

A In the year 1985, BOC transferred its entire property in Bangldesh (including share of Burmah

Eastern Limited) in favour of Bangladesh Petroleum Corporation (BPC).

As per terms of the transfer of BOC's entire share to BPC, Burmah Eastern Limited was required to
change its name and as such subsequently the Company's name was changed as 'PADMA OIL
COMPANY LIMITED' in the year 1988.
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Special Business:

(1) To amend the clause Nos. 104 and clause 105 (2nd part) of the Articles of Association of the

Company for increasing the number of Independent Director in the Board of Directors of the
Company as per directives of Bangladesh Securities & Exchange Commission (BSEC) and if

07

thought fit to pass the following resolution as special.

Special Resolution:

To amend the clause Nos. 104 and clause 105 (2nd part) of the Articles of Association of the

Company as noted bellow :

Existing Clause of the Articles of Association:

To be amended as and substituted by:

104. Unless otherwise determined by the
Company in General Meeting the number of
the Directors shall not be less than five and
more than eight.

104. Unless otherwise determined by the
Company in General Meeting the number of
the Directors shall not be less than five and
more than seven excluding the requisite
Independent Directors as per directives of
Bangladesh  Securities &  Exchange
Commission (BSEC).

105 (2nd part). All subsequent Boards shall
consist of eight Directors of whom six shall
be elected/ appointed from amongst the
nominees of Bangladesh Petroleum
Corporation and the remaining two, one shall
be elected from amongst the remaining
shareholders who are Bangladeshi Nationals
and other one shall be appointed by the Board
of Directors as Independent Director.

105 (2nd part). All subsequent Boards shall
consist of seven Directors of whom six shall
be elected/appointed from amongst the
nominees of Bangladesh  Petroleum
Corporation and the remaining one shall be
elected from amongst the remaining
shareholders who are Bangladeshi Nationals.
But the requisite Independent Directors shall
be appointed by the Board of Directors as per
directives of Bangladesh Securities &
Exchange Commission (BSEC).
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NOTICE OF THE 49" ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 49th Annual General Meeting of Padma Oil Company Limited will
be held on Saturday, 16th February 2019 (04 Falgun 1425) at 11.00 am at 'International Convention
Centre,' 281 Chatteswari Road, Kazir Dewri, Chattogram to transact the following business:

AGENDA:

1. To confirm the minutes of the 48th Annual General Meeting held on 17th February 2018;

2. To receive and adopt the Directors' Report and Auditors' Report and the Audited Financial
Statements of the Company for the year ended 30th June, 2018;

3. To declare dividend for the year ended 30th June, 2018;

4. To elect/re-elect Directors;

5. To approve the appointment of Independent Directors;

6. To appoint Joint Auditors and fix their remuneration for the year ending 30th June, 2019.

7. To appoint practicing Professional Accountant/Secretary for issuing certificate regarding Compliance
of Corporate Governance Code and fix their remuneration.

Special Business:

(1) To amend the clause Nos. 104 and clause 105 (2nd part) of the Articles of Association of the
Company for increasing the number of Independent Director in the Board of Directors of the
Company as per directives of Bangladesh Securities & Exchange Commission (BSEC) and if

thought fit to pass the following resolution as special.

Special Resolution:

To amend the clause Nos. 104 and clause 105 (2nd part) of the Articles of Association of the

Company as noted bellow :

Existing Clause of the Articles of Association:

To be amended as and substituted by:

104. Unless otherwise determined by the
Company in General Meeting the number of
the Directors shall not be less than five and
more than eight.

104. Unless otherwise determined by the
Company in General Meeting the number of
the Directors shall not be less than five and
more than seven excluding the requisite
Independent Directors as per directives of
Bangladesh  Securities &  Exchange
Commission (BSEC).

105 (2nd part). All subsequent Boards shall
consist of eight Directors of whom six shall
be elected/ appointed from amongst the
nominees of Bangladesh Petroleum
Corporation and the remaining two, one shall
be elected from amongst the remaining
shareholders who are Bangladeshi Nationals
and other one shall be appointed by the Board
of Directors as Independent Director.

105 (2nd part). All subsequent Boards shall
consist of seven Directors of whom six shall
be elected/appointed from amongst the
nominees of Bangladesh Petroleum
Corporation and the remaining one shall be
elected from amongst the remaining
shareholders who are Bangladeshi Nationals.
But the requisite Independent Directors shall
be appointed by the Board of Directors as per
directives of Bangladesh Securities &
Exchange Commission (BSEC).

10th Magh, 1425

23rd January, 2019
Strand Road, Sadarghat,
Chattogram.

By order of the Board of Directors

Sohel Abdullah
Company Secretary
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Notes:

01. Record Date:

The Record Date was 19 December 2018. The Shareholders whose names appearing in the
CDBL Depository Register and Share Register of the Company on the Record Date will be
eligible to attend the Annual General Meeting and receive the dividend.

02. Proxy:

A Member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting may appoint a Proxy to
attend and vote on his/her behalf. In order to be effective, the Proxy Form duly signed and
stamped must be submitted at the Company's Registered Office not later than SEVENTY TWO
HOURS before the Meeting.

Special Note:

The Annual Report of the Company in soft form will be sent to the e-mail address of the
shareholders as have been found available in their BO Account with the Depository. The said
Annual Report is also available in the website of the Company (www.pocl.gov.bd). Besides, the
shareholders may collect the Annual Report 2017-18 from Registered Office of the company by
submitting written request beforehand. Besides, Annual Report 2017-18 will be available at
AGM Venue also.

No gift or benefit in cash or kind shall be paid to the holders of the equity securities in
terms of Clause (C) of the BSEC's Notification No. SEC/SRMI1/2000-953/1950 dated 24
October 2000 for attending this AGM of the Company.

Admission to the Meeting room will be strictly on production of the attendance slip.
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Board of Directors

Md. Shamsur Rahman
Chairman, POCL Board

Mohammad Igbal Md. Ekhlasur Rahman
Independent Director, POCL Board Director, POCL Board

Dr. Mohd. Sher Ali Md. Altaf Hussain Chaudhury
Director, POCL Board Director, POCL Board



Board of Directors

Mohammed Abdul Awwal
Shareholder Director, POCL Board

Md. Arifuzzaman Miah Tutul
Director, POCL Board

Sohel Abdullah
Company Secretary &
DGM (Sales)
Padma Oil Company Limited

KM Eneyetul Karim
Independent Director, POCL Board

Md. Masudur Rahman
Managing Director, POCL
Director, POCL Board
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Brief Resume of Chairman & Directors

Mr. Md. Shamsur Rahman, Chairman

m Mr. Md. Shamsur Rahman is the Chairman of Bangladesh Petroleum Corporation
“ ! | (BPC) along with Chairman of the Board of Directors of Padma Oil Company Ltd.
*v\ (POCL), Jamuna Oil Company Ltd. (JOCL), Eastern Lubricants Blenders Limited

(ELBL) and LP Gas Limited. He joined Bangladesh Petroleum Corporation on 19th
September, 2018 and assumed charge as the Chairman of the Board on the same date. He is also a
Director of Eastern Refinery Limited (ERL) Board.

Mr. Md. Shamsur Rahman, Secretary (In-charge) to Government of Bangladesh (GOB) is an
accomplished professional civil servant with 30 years of experience in both central and field
administration. Mr. Rahman has joined 7th(1985) batch of BCS (Admin) in 1988 as Assistant
Commissioner. Before GOB assigned him with the responsibility to cater Country's requirement
of Fuel supply as Chairman of Bangladesh Petroleum Corporation (BPC), Mr. Rahman was an
Additional Secretary assigned in Public Security Division, Ministry of Home Affairs.

As a career Civil Bureaucrat Mr. Md. Shamsur Rahman served 28 years in Magistracy as well as
Field Administration in different capacities including AC(Land), Upazila Magistrate,
Metropolitan Magistrate at Dhaka Metropolitan City, UNO at Nolcity, Jhalokathi &
Dagonbhuiyan, Feni , ADC & ADM at Pabna. In 2006, he got promotion in the rank of Deputy
Secretary and was placed as Director in the Directorate of Relief and Rehabilitation. From 2009-
2012 he worked as Deputy Commissioner (DC) & District Magistrate at Narayanganj with
successful administrative records. Then he was again posted in the same directorate as Director
(Joint Secretary and later Additional Secretary). He had the opportunity to gather diverse
experiences in the field of disaster risk reduction through his 7 years service in the same
Directorate.

In his academic attainments, Mr. Rahman achieved his post-graduation in mass communication
& journalism from Dhaka University. During his long career, he took various professional
trainings from BPATC, Civil Service College, Singapore & Bradford University, UK.

Mr. Rahman was born in a noble Muslim family at Dasmina Upazila, Patuakhali. In his personal
life he is married to Mrs. Salma Rahman. They have one son named Shadman Rahman and one
daughter named Sunaya Amrin Rahman.

Mr. Mohammad Igbal, Independent Director

Mr. Mohammad Igbal joined Padma Oil Company Ltd as an Independent Director in
February 2018. He is also the Chairman of Audit Committee and Nomination &
Remuneration Committee (NRC) of the Company. He obtained a Masters and Bachelor
(with honours) degree in Law from University of Dhaka, Bangladesh with Graduate
Certificate in Information Technology from Charles Sturt University, Australia. He is a retired
Civil Servant from 1984 batch of Bangladesh Civil Service (Administration) cadre. He worked in
various capacities of staff, command and instruction in the Government and state-owned
commercial enterprises. The Senior appointments from 2009 include Chairman, Bangladesh
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Chemical Industries Corporation (BCIC), Director General of Department of Narcotics Control,
Director General of National Institute of Population Research and Training (NIPORT), Joint
Secretary of Ministry of Housing and Public Works (MOPW) and Director (Survey) of
Department of Land Records and Surveys (DLRS).

He also worked as Chairman of the Board of Directors in (1) Ashuganj Fertilizer Co Ltd; (2) TSP
Company Ltd; (3) Karnaphully Papers Co Ltd; (4) Osmania Glass Sheet Factory; (5) Jamuna
Fertilizer Company; (6) CUFL Ltd; (7) Novartis Bangladesh Ltd.; (8) Syngenta Bangladesh Ltd;
(9) Sanofi Bangladesh Ltd; (10) Bayer Crop Science Bangladesh Ltd; (11) Chittagong Chemical
Complex Ltd. He was a Director, Board of Directors of (1) KAFCO Bangladesh Ltd.; (2) Titas
Gas Transmission Co. Ltd.; (3) Shahjalal Fertilizer Co Ltd.

He retired from Civil Service in 2017. Currently he is working as a part-time Researcher in
Bangladesh Law Commission.

Mr. Md. Ekhlasur Rahman, Director

Mr. Md. Ekhlasur Rahman joined Padma Oil Company Ltd as a Director in March
2018. Mr. Md. Ekhlasur Rahman, Addl. Secretary, Treasury and Debt Management
Wing, Finance Division, Ministry of Finance, obtained his Graduation and Masters
from the Department of International Relations from University of Dhaka. He also
obtained a Post Graduate Diploma in International Relation and Development from Institute of
Social Studies (ISS), The Hague, and the Netherlands. Then in 2000/2001 he obtained an MBA
degree from Maastricht School of Management (MSM), the Netherlands. He joined in the Audit
and Accounts Cadre in 1988 and served in different capacities. In 2006, he joined in Finance
Division as Deputy Secretary. Worked there as Joint Secretary and presently he is working in
Finance Division as Additional Secretary.

Mr. Rahman is the Director of Bangladesh Development Bank Ltd (BDBL) and also serving as
the Chairman of Audit Committee there. He is also serving as a board member of Bangladesh
Infrastructure Finance Fund Limited, Bangladesh Cable Shilpa Ltd, and Financial Reporting
Council (FRC). He is also the Board member of SAARC Development Fund (SDF).

Dr. Mohd. Sher Ali, Director

Dr. Mohd. Sher Ali joined Padma Oil Company Ltd as a Director in August 2017. He is
also a member of Audit Committee and Nomination & Remuneration Committee (NRC)
of the Company. Dr. Mohd. Sher Ali is a Joint Secretary of Bangladesh Government and
currently working to the Energy and Mineral Resources Division, Ministry of Power,
Energy and Mineral Resources. He joined BCS (Admin.) Cadre as Assistant Commissioner and
Magistrate in 1993 and serving long years in different capacities in field level as well as in different
ministries. He earned Bachelor of Arts with Honours and Masters of Arts in Economics. He also
completed Master of Philosophy (M. Phil) in Management. He completed Doctor of Philosophy (Ph.
D) under Department of Banking and Insurance from University of Dhaka.

In service life he is experienced of participation in different training, study tour, conference,
Government delegation, seminar, workshop etc. in home and abroad.
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Mr. Md. Altaf Hussain Chaudhury, Director

Mr. Md. Altaf Hussain Chaudhury joined Padma Oil Company Ltd as a Director in
May 2018. He is also a member of Audit Committee and Nomination & Remuneration
Committee (NRC) of the Company. Mr. Md. Altaf Hussain Chaudhury completed his
graduation from BAU (Bangladesh Agricultural University) Mymensingh and obtained
his MS (Agronomy) degree from IPSA (Institute of Post Graduate Studies in Agriculture, now
renamed as Bangabandhu Sheikh Mujibur Rahman Agricultural University (BSMRAU), Gazipur.

Mr. Md. Altaf Hussain Chaudhury is a BCS (admin) cadre officer and a member of 11th BCS.
He served as 1st Class Magistrate, AC (land), UNO and ADC of field administration in Naogaon,
Pabna, Chattogram, Cox's Bazar, Chandpur, Feni Districts & Chatmahar, Banskhali, Boalkhali,
Teknaf, Matlab (South) Upazilas. Later he was Commercial Manager of CWASA, ZSO (Zonal
Settlement Officer) Chattogram and Director (Environment) of DoE.

He is now Joint Secretary and acting as Director (Finance) of BPC (Bangladesh Petroleum
Corporation). He is also a Director of LPGL and SAOCL Board.

Mr. Mohammed Awwal, Shareholder Director

Mr. Mohammed Abdul Awwal completed his Masters Degree from Dhaka
University in 1967. A leading business personality of Bangladesh, Mr. Awwal
involves in diversified trade and Industry. He is the Chairman of MKR Group with
offices in Chattogram, Dhaka, Khulna & other places. The core Company is

Bengal Shipping Line Ltd established during mid 1950s and later floated as private limited
company in 1962. He was a sponsor Director of several Public Listed Company like-National
Bank Ltd, Pragati Insurance, Pragati Life Insurance, Dulamia Cotton and Spinning Mills,
K&Q (BD) Ltd etc. He was also a promoter & member of Chittagong Stock Exchange. He is
also Shareholder Director of ELBL Board.

Mr. Awwal is involved with many professional and business bodies in Chattogram, Dhaka and
Khulna. These are Chittagong Chambers of Commerce & Industry, Metropolitan Chamber of
Commerce & Industry-Chattogram & Dhaka, Bangladesh Shipping Agents Association,
Bangladesh Master Stevedores Association and many others. He was also an Executive Member
of the Islamic Ship Owners Association based in Jeddah. He was one of the initial promoter
Member of the Famous World Economic Forum- Geneva. Apart from these, he is a leading
philanthropist especially in Educational Sector. He is the Chairman of GB bodies of KR Kamil
Madrasha, KR Degree College, KR High School and several others and also patron of many
educational/Social Institutions.

He was appointed as 'Honorary Consul' of the Republic of the Philippines in Chattogram since
2010. He was Rotary District Governor of Bangladesh in 1998-99 and now he is performing as
the Zonal Leader in many RI positions.
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Mr. KM Eneyetul Karim (Helal), Independent Director

Mr. KM Eneyetul Karim joined Padma Oil Company Limited as an Independent
Director in 2018. He is also a member of Nomination & Remuneration Committee
(NRC) of the Company. He obtained Bachelor of Science from University of Rajshahi
and MBA from Uttara University, Dhaka, He also obtained Masters of Tax
Management (MTM) from University of Dhaka.

Currently, Mr. Karim is working as CEO of Times Textile Mills & Times Fashions. Mr. Karim
worked in several companies including Fakir Apparels Ltd. as an adviser, Mithila Textile Mills
Ltd. as an executive Director, Bhuiyan Textile Mill Ltd. & Pacific Spinning Mills Ltd. as General
Manager (Marketing) and Tawaha Fabrics Ltd. & Shell Textile, Dhaka as General Manager
(Admin & Marketing).

Mr. Karim is actively involved in various social activities like Charter President of a Rotary Club,
Rotary International District-3281, Bangladesh, Khulna Computer Samity, Dhaka Royal Club
Ltd. etc. He is a member of Narayanganj Chamber of Commerce & Industries. He visited many
countries.

Mr. Md. Arifuzzaman Miah Tutul, Director

Mr. Md. Arifuzzaman Miah Tutul joined Padma Oil Company Limited as a Director in
2015. Since then he has been playing significant role for the Company's growth. He is
also Director of Water Aid Ltd. Mr. Md. Arifuzzaman Miah Tutul is a business man.
He is proprietor of a construction company named Sujanagar Enterprise.

Md. Arifuzzaman Miah Tutul completed his B.Com (Honours) and M.Com in Accounting from
Dhaka College under the National University. He is actively involved in various social activities.

Mr. Md. Masudur Rahman, Director

Mr. Md. Masudur Rahman is the Managing Director of Padma Oil Company Limited
(POCL), a subsidiary of Bangladesh Petroleum Corporation (BPC). He joined POCL
as Managing Director on 2nd April, 2017 and was appointed as the Director of POCL
I Board on 16th April, 2017. Prior to his joining in POCL, he also served as Managing
Director of Jamuna Oil Company Limited (JOCL) from 23.02.2015 to 01.04.2017. Mr. Rahman
joined as an Operations Engineer at Meghna Petroleum Limited, another subsidiary of BPC, on
4th March, 1990. He has over 28 years of professional experience in the country's downstream
petroleum industry.

Mr. Md. Masudur Rahman completed his BSc in Engineering (Mech.) from Bangladesh
University of Engineering & Technology (BUET) and EMBA in Finance from University of
Science and Technology, Chattogram (USTC). He attended various seminars and training courses
at home and abroad.
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Corporate Management

Md. Masudur Rahman
Managing Director

Md. Abu Saleh Iqgbal Md. Aminul Haque
General Manager (Ops. & Planning) General Manager

Numan Ahmed Taffader Sohel Abdullah Md. Rezaul Haq
Deputy General Manager Company Secretary & Deputy General Manager
Deputy General Manager (Sales)



Corporate Management

Md. Mahbubul Alam Md. Nurul Amin Md. Shahidul Alam
Deputy General Manager Deputy General Manager Deputy General Manager
(Aviation) (Engg. & Planning) (HR & Admin)

Md. Abdus Sobhan Md. Mosaddeque Hossain N. M. Mahboob
Deputy General Manager Deputy General Manager Deputy General Manager
(Dhaka)

C.M Ziaul Hassan Syed Akhter Azam Kanchan Chandra Shom, FCMA
Deputy General Manager (Audit) DGM (Chemicals) DGM (Accounts) & CFO
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Corporate Information

Company Secretary
Sohel Abdullah

Legal Advisors
H & H Company
Lex Counsel
Tanjib Alam & Associates
Advocate Mohsanuddin Chowdhury
Advocate S. C. Lala

Tax Consultant

Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Auditors

Rahman Rahman Huq
Chartered Accountants

Shafiqg Basak & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Insurers
Sadharan Bima Corporation

Delta Life Insurance Co. Ltd.

Bankers

Janata Bank Limited

Agrani Bank Limited

Sonali Bank Limited

Bangladesh Krishi Bank

Pubali Bank Limited

Eastern Bank Limited

Trust Bank Limited

Standard Chartered Bank

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Ltd.
Citibank N A

One Bank Limited

United Commercial Bank Limited
Brac Bank Limited

Bank Asia Limited

AB Bank Limited

Mercantile Bank Limited

Prime Bank Limited
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PERFORMANCE AT A GLANCE FOR 2017-18

2017-18 2016-17

PRXH 20.08
Lac Metric Lac Metric
Tons Tons

Fuel Oil Sales

Net Profit before Tax

Net Profit after Tax

Earnings

per Share

NAYV per share

NOCF per share
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Chairman's Statement

Bismillahir Rahmanir Rahim
Honorable Shareholders,
Assalamu Alaikum,

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Padma Oil
Company Limited (POCL) and myself, | am delighted
to welcome you all to the 49th Annual General Meeting
of the Company. We have made every effort to
accomplish our jobs in FY 2017-18. | would like to
inform you that our Company has made significant
profit as well as committed high standards of service,
adherence to business ethics and regulations
compliance to the norm of good governance and
continuous improvement in shareholders' value in this
year. | sincerely thank you for continuing your constant
support and reliance on us which has inspired us
throughout the year's activities. In this occasion, | like
to take the opportunities to share with you the pleasure
as highlight the business

performance of the Company in FY 2017-18.

of success as well
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Business Environment in FY 2017-2018:

The overall economic situation in the country was positive
in FY 2017-18 as indicated by steady improvements in the
major economic indicators. According to Bangladesh
Bureau of Statistics (BBS) estimate, the economy grew at
7.86% in FY 2017-18, which is 0.58 percent higher than
the GDP growth rate of 7.28% achieved in the previous
fiscal year. The economy of Bangladesh continued its
growth in all important sectors in FY 2017-18. During the
fiscal year, the total sale of fuel oil in the country was
69.48 lac Metric Tons, showing an increase of 17.98%
compared to the last fiscal year. The use of petroleum
products is increasing gradually due to rapid increase of
activities in industry, commerce, agriculture, power and
transport sectors towards the development of the
country's economy.

Business Performance in FY 2017-2018:

It appears from the business outcome that in the 2017-18
fiscal year, the Company crossed a most successful year
of its history. The Company achieved significant growth in
its principal business of fuel oil marketing in the reported
year. In FY 2017-18 the Company's sale of petroleum
products stood at 23.66 lac Metric Tons which was 20.08
lac Metric Tons in FY 2016-17. That is, in this fiscal year,
the sale of petroleum products increased by 17.83% than
that of the last fiscal year. Among the fuel oil marketing
companies, the market share of the Company was
34.05% and the Company ranked second position in the
industry. On the other hand, sales of agrochemicals
products of the Company declined compared to the last
year as the agrochemicals business has been very
competitive. The Company's sale of agrochemicals
products stood at 3,570 Metric Tons in FY 2017-18
showing a decline of 12.78% as against 4,093 Metric
Tons. With the increase in the sales volume of the
Company's principal business fuel oil and continuous
sincere efforts of the Company's Board of Directors,
management and employees, the Company's profit
before tax increased by 65.38% to Taka 488.02 crore in
the correspondence year from Taka 270.91 crore of the

last fiscal year. Thus, Earning per Share (EPS) also
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increased by 65.28% during the year under review
compared to the preceding year. EPS stood at Taka
34.18 in this year, as against Taka 20.68 of the last year.

Progress of development works in FY 2017-2018:

You know that several projects have been undertaken
for the Company's business expansion. We have
progressed a long way this year to implement various
projects taken by the Company. The construction of
1.00 lac MT storage capacity Mongla Oil Installation on
17-acres land of BPC adjoining Mongla Port is in the
final stage. The approved cost of the project has been
fixed at Taka 204.56 crore and our company is
financing one-third of the total cost. It is expected that
depot operations will start within March, 2018.

The construction of 23 storied Head office multi-storied
building having 2 basements and 1 semi-basement in
Agrabad Commercial Area of Chattogram on 0.42-acre
of the company's owned land is in progress. Consultant
has been appointed for construction of 12-storied
commercial building with two additional basements in
the Company's 1.88-acres owned land at Paribag,
Dhaka office. At present, BUET is vetting the
drawing/design of the project provided by the
consultant. The tender will be floated to appoint a
contractor for the construction of the building very soon.

Apart from these, a project of automation has been
undertaken to modernize operational activities at Main
Installation of three oil marketing companies including
Padma Oil Company. For this purpose, the
international consultant appointment is under process.
The operational activities in depots
established in different places of the country will also
be modernized in phases. In order to expand
company's business, step is being taken by the
Company to establish riverine depots at Bhairab
Bazar and Barishal replacing existing barge depots.

various

Besides, there are several development projects are in
progress including expansion of depot, and physical
infrastructural expansion program to ensure
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uninterrupted supply of fuel oil throughout the country
and providing more services to the consumers.

Dividend:

We are always committed to our valued shareholders.
Therefore, we are working hard to increase the long-term
shareholders' value by our diligence and continuous
efforts. The Board of Directors has recommended 130 %
cash dividend for giving the honorable shareholders for
this year as against 110% of the last year due to 65.38%
increase of the Company's net profit than that of the last

year.

Our Motto:

You know that fuel sector is considered as most
important sector of the economy. Macroeconomic
indicators are being greatly influenced by the supply
and movement of price of the petroleum products.
Therefore, oil-marketing companies give more
importance to the services of the people of the country.
Padma Oil Company Ltd. is one of the leading fuel oil
and agrochemicals marketing Company in the country.
The Company is playing important role in the overall
economy of the country through the uninterrupted
supply of petroleum products in the remote areas of
the country. Moreover, the Company has been
contributing to the agro based economy through the
production and marketing of agrochemicals products.

The agricultural sector is the most important sector in
Bangladesh economy. It employed about 40.60
percent of Bangladesh's total labor force and
accounted for about 14.23 percent of GDP in FY 2017-
2018. The main goal and objective of the Company is
to ensure supply of fuel oil to the doorsteps of the
people on time at Government's fixed price through
proper management of the Company and to operate
marketing activities in organized way. Besides, the
Company is also trying to strengthen the supply of
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environmental friendly and quality agrochemicals
products to increase the production of agricultural
products and providing services to the consumers
through organized marketing activities.

Focus on FY 2018-2019:

Our focus on FY 2018-2019 will be to ensure energy
security of the country through uninterrupted supply of
quality petroleum products at government regulated price
and strengthen the supply of environmental friendly and
excellence agrochemical products across the country to
increase the country's agricultural production. Side by
side, we want to take forward the projects taken by the
Company for expansion of business. Besides, our goal
for the next year will be maximize the shareholders'
value by earning significant growth on net profit of the
Company's business like this year

Thanks & Gratitude:

Finally, | like to convey my thanks and profound
gratitude to Energy & Mineral Resources Division,
Ministry of Power, Energy & Mineral Resources of the
Government of the People's Republic of Bangladesh
and Bangladesh Petroleum Corporation for the timely
and proper directions. | would also like to thank each
member of the Board of Directors for their collective
efforts and the management team, all the officials and
staff of the Company for their sincere efforts and
supports. Without their co-operations it was not
possible for the Company to achieve its desired goal. |
express my gratitude to Registrar of Joint Stock
Companies and Firms, Bangladesh Securities and
Exchange Commission, Dhaka Stock Exchange Ltd.,
Chittagong Stock Exchange Ltd., Central Depository
Bangladesh Ltd., our auditors, customers and all well-
wisher of the Company for their support and directions.

Allah Hafez

(Md. Shamsur Rahman)
Chairman
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Board of Directors' Report

Bismillahir Rahmanir Rahim
Honorable Shareholders,
Assalamu Alaikum

The Board of Directors of the Padma Oil Company
Limited takes immense pleasure to present the 49th
Annual Report of the Company to our valued
shareholders. It is an honor for the Board of Directors
to present the Directors' Report together with the
audited Financial Statements of the Company for the
year ended 30 June 2018 and the Auditors' Report
thereon to our valued shareholders for consideration
and approval.

The Directors' Report contains an overview of the
Bangladesh economy, Petroleum and Agrochemicals
Industry, the financial, operating, and corporate
responsibility performance of the Company in FY
2017-18 and highlights the total position and
opportunity of the Company.

Preparation of Financial Statements:

Financial Statements of POCL give a correct and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and the
results of its operation, cash flow and changes in
equity. The presented financial statements have been
prepared in compliance with Bangladesh Accounting
Standards (BAS) and Bangladesh Financial Reporting
Standards (BFRS) and in accordance with the relevant
requirements of the schedule to the Bangladesh
Securities and Exchange Rules 1987, in conformity
with the Companies Act 1994 and to give a correct and
fair view of the total business activities of the Company
to our shareholders. The financial statements are
prepared by the management, audited by external
auditors appointed in the Annual General Meeting and

approved by the Board of Directors.

Economic Situation:

Bangladesh economy managed to maintain the
sustainable growth momentum in FY 2017-18. The
progress of the indicators of the economy indicates
that in the fiscal year 2017-18, the country's overall
economic situation was favourable. During the year the
economy experienced stable growth, inflation was
under control, foreign exchange reserves remained at
comfortable level.
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According to Bangladesh Bureau of Statistics (BBS)
estimate, the GDP growth rate stood at 7.86 percent in
FY 2017-18, which exceeds the Government's fixed
target of 7.40 percent by 0.46 percent. The GDP
growth rate was 7.28 percent in FY 2016-17. The
higher GDP growth occurred in FY 2017-18 due to all-
round expansion in i) agriculture ii) industry iii) power &
fuel iv) transport v) construction, and vi) several
services sub-sectors.

The industrial sector growth stood at 12.06 percent in
FY 2017-18 by increasing 1.84 percent form the
previous year's 10.22 percent. The Agricultural sector
growth increased to 4.19 percent in FY 2017-18 from
2.97 percent in FY 2016-17. The Agricultural sector is
the most important sector in Bangladesh economy. It
employed about 40.60 percent of Bangladesh's total
labor force and accounted for about 14.23 percent of
GDP in this FY 2017-18. According to BBS estimate,
the service sector growth stood at 6.39 percent
decreased by 0.30 % from 6.69 percent in FY 2016-17.
The per capita National Income reached at US$ 1,751
in FY 2017-2018, up by US$ 141, from US$ 1,610 of
previous fiscal year.

The government had targeted to maintain average inflation
within 5.50 percent in FY 2017-18. The average inflation
stood at 5.78 percent in FY 2017-18 that was 5.44 percent
in FY 2016-17. The country's overall economic progress in
2017-18 fiscal year was satisfactory.

Industry Review:

(a) Fuel Sector:

The organized management and uninterrupted supply of
fuel oil play a major role in the economic development of
the country. Fuel sector is considered as the most
prioritized sector of economy. It has a great influence
directly or indirectly in all economic sectors. Fuel oil use
has been increased in every sector including in
agriculture, transport, industry sector and electricity
production. As a result, the price of fuel oil has a direct
impact on inflation.

Fuel index demand depicts whether a county is moving
forward towards the development or not. In 1972, the
overall demand of fuel oil in the country was 8.48 lac
M.tons, which increased to 69.48 lac M.tons in FY
2017-18.
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The use of petroleum products in Bangladesh
increased by 17.98% in FY 2017-18 compared to the
last fiscal year. From economic perspective of view, to
meet the demand of a whole import-dependency of
fuel oil requires foreign exchanges that have huge
impact on country's macro economy. In order to meet
the demand of fuel oil in the country 55.43 lac M.tons
refined fuel oil and 11.72 lac M.tons of crude oil were
imported from abroad in FY 2017-18. It can be
mentioned here that crude oil is refined in the country's
only oil refinery Eastern Refinery Limited. Beside, 5.25
lac M.Tons fuel oil was produced by various gas fields
under public sector and different fractionation plants

under private sector.
Product wise sale of petroleum products:

In the fiscal year 2017-18 the sale of different grades
of petroleum product in the country was as follows:

Product Quantity (in MT)  Percentage of Total Sales
Jet A-1 4,08,272 5.88
Octane 2,30,280 3.31
Petrol 2,84,668 4.10
Kerosene 1,38,403 1.99
Diesel 48,35,712 69.60
LDO 96 0.00
JBO 17,910 0.26
Furnace Oil 9,25,150 13.31
Lube Oil 19,812 0.29
SBP 1993 0.03
MTT 10,338 0.15
LPG 16,303 0.23
Bitumen 59,399 0.85
Total 69,48,336 100.00

Sector wise consumption:

Most of the fuel oils in Bangladesh are used in three
major sectors namely transport, power and agriculture.
The details of the fuel oil used in FY 2016-17 and 2017-
18 are as follows:

(Qty in MT)
Sector 2017-18 (%)  2016-17 (%)
Agriculture  10,90,903 15.70  9,05,623 15.38
Industry 3,37,903 486 3,70,848 6.30
Power 18,71,756  26.94 13,72,260 23.30
Transport  34,32,239 4940 30,38,511 51.60
Domestic & Others ~ 2,15,535 3.10 2,01,488  3.42
Total 69,48,336  100.00 58,88,730 100.00
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Sector Wise Consumption of Fuel (%) 2017-18
3.10

@ Agriculture @ Industry . Power & Transport & Domestic & Others

Division wise consumption:

In the FY 2016-17 and FY 2017-18 fiscal years division
wise sales of fuel oil in the country were as follows:

(Qty in MT)
Division 2017-18 (%) 2016-17 (%)
Chattogram 16,98,903 2445 12,17,815 20.68
Sylhet 2,03,619 293 175120 297
Dhaka 24,49,602 3525 22,41,055 38.06
Mymensingh 1,68,158 242 1,40,007 2.38
Rajshai 8,81,378 12.68 7,06,417 12.00
Rangpur 4,00,575 577 3,57,190 6.06
Khulna 9,19,156 13.23 8,59,946 14.60
Barishal 2,26,945 327 191,180 3.25
Total 69,48,336 100.00  58,88,730 100.00

Sale and Market Share of Oil Marketing Companies:

The details of the sale and market share of three
major marketing companies are as follows in the fiscal
year 2017-18:

Company's Name Total sale(MT inlac) Market Share(%) Position

MPL 24.71 35.51 1st
POCL 23.66 34.05 2nd
JOCL 18.34 26.40 3rd

Transport pool of fuel oil:

At present, there are 95 costal tankers, 04 shallow draft
tankers and 73 bay crossing shallow draft tankers and
19 mini oil tankers in three oil marketing companies'
transport pool of fuel oil. Among them, there are 37
costal tankers, 01 shallow draft tankers, 25 bay
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crossing shallow draft tankers and 06 mini oil tankers in
the POCL's transport pool of fuel oil. It is mentionable
here that about 90% of the fuel oil is transported
through the river, 8% fuel oil is transported by railway
and rest of 2% fuel oil is transported on the road.

Marketing Network:

Currently, there are 2,203 filling stations, 3,040
agents/distributors, 682 packed point dealers and
3,133 LPG dealers in the marketing network of 3 oil-
marketing companies of the Country. Of that, POCL
has 683 filling stations, 917 agent/distributors, 228
packed point dealers, 715 LPG dealers and 51 marine
dealers in its marketing network.

(b) Agrochemicals Sector:

There is no alternative to increasing agricultural
production in this country of agro based economy. It is
essential to use modern agricultural inputs such as
high bread seeds and fertilizer as well as pesticides to
increase production. In order to meet the food demand
of the country's growing population, there has been
created a huge market of pesticides along with
modernization of agriculture. More than 380 both
domestic and multi-national companies including
Padma Oil Co. Ltd. have been marketing various types
of pesticide products in this country which are
contributing significantly to the production and
preservation of agricultural crops. According to BCPA
Report, the sale of agrochemical products in
agrochemical industry in 2017-18 fiscal year was about
36,000 M.tons.

The Padma Oil Company Limited, using its own image
and product brand image, has been importing and
distributing 12 products (Furadan, Mipsin, Pidione,
Pimidor, Padma Lambda, Piquat, Pithion, Mukta plus,
Mg Plus, Foliarel, Soil Zip and Padma Chelate)
registered with the Company's own name as well as
the best products of the world's best Chemical
manufacturers (FMC-America, BASF-Germany,
Mitsubishi- Japan, Heliz- Srilanka, Riceco- India,
Rasayan-India, Nanjing-China) being contracted with
them. Agrochemical pesticides are playing an
important role in Bangladesh agriculture. Several
research studies have shown that use of chemical

30



31

SN IR P ACHT Teoime ¢ T FS!
Iace SR w_/WiE A | eFS  EAGHTE,
TGP GF 3@ P e FRce (A @F9
Giice > @fea e W) FH I [IRE
QFEFer TFe @R SHATAE (TR (BT I | @N:
dfs @@ TAE-Yy &fE, @ifdm-v.e &
Zolfelre-8.59 (Ffen; FICH-v.0q (Hfer; BTCANA-R.¢
@& gR TBGIGTo-2.3¢ @& FR FEAF ey
JAZS T | TSI GoFe], AMGOOIN AL AT
ACATS FAETTR TPTS Aoy AfoF T FIFAR T
WCFG <RI I il 789 |

Prefieet a7 sifeE:

TR T FIRG =6 @l coeT, R0 ¢ A,
R ¢ Wt ey, Tgm, AEETEFA @ o |
O AL A B PO =y TeAme @ el
IE | TE @I TR G Sy o
ACACR: (F) QI (oo @ (X)) SRS A9y |

@R IR T 089-3
() gy co=:

2059-5b IMRE @ G cowe @y e
0.0 TF (.59, A 050->9 AT [TEFT 20.0b
TF (5T (B ©.¢b TTF (X.55 AR 59.00% T |
Dy SRR (@FEIPE 8 @afee rere AT A9
QrETfe) AT R Jfa AR | R059-db AR o
wfRad e Rer e ST :8.¢¢%,
(&5 @-> 4.99%, GG .99%, T 35.50%,
FCAA I ©5.59%, (&8 8.3¢%, Ao
09.35%, AR 598.29% €A I € A 5.88% |
SN, S SRR T IRRE weH @y
P (IR FEIPT 23.55% € @8 be.85% |
ene fge e @3z Rgees Sestmsy Jfa “mewm
FRACT MR AOT® e [Tpea 2eAF T
RPN T @2 AR | S, @efes a7
R fEree 8 et Sewe 7T efegifre zmes |

(¥) IR DS “f:
2039-3 FRRE @FHIET SN 2el

ANNUAL REPORT

2017 - 2018

pesticides contributes significantly to increase the
productivity and production of agricultural products.
According to the source of World Institute, USA, the
use of pesticide in Bangladesh is lower (less than 1kg
per hectare) than most of the developed and
developing countries such as in Japan- 11.0 kg;
Korea- 6.5 kg; ltaly- 4.17 kg; France- 3.07 kg; Europe-
2.50 kg and USA-2.25 kg per hectare. It can be
possible to increase the Company's market share of
the agrochemicals business if appropriate human
resources, logistics support with other services and
quality products are provided to the doorsteps of the
farmers in the right time.

POCL Activities:

The principal activities of the Company are
procurement, storage, and marketing  of Petroleum
products, Lubricants & Greases, Bitumen, and LPG. In
addition, the Company has been engaged with
production and marketing of Agrochemical Products.
Thus, the Company's business has two reportable
segments: (a) Petroleum and (b) Agrochemicals.

Company's Business performance: 2017-18
(a) Petroleum Products:

In the financial year 2017-18, the Company's fuel oil
sale was 23.66 lac M.tons, more than 3.58 lac M.tons
(17.83% more) than last year's sale of 20.08 lac
M.tons. In the corresponding year, sales of all other
fuel products increased except for kerosene and LDO.
The sales of Octane 24.55%, Jet A-1 7.77%, MS
22.33%, Diesel 19.90%, FO 31.17%, JBO 4.25%, MTT
37.29%, SBP 134.23% and Lube & Grease 1.44%
increased in this year compared to the last year.
Besides sales of Kerosene and LDO decreased by
21.91% and 85.49% respectively during the year under
review compared to the previous fiscal year. Because
of the increase in solar power consumption and
electricity production due to electrification in the
remote areas of the Country the sale of kerosene has
been decreasing gradually. On the other hand, use of
LDO has been substituted by Diesel and FO.

(b) Agrochemicals Sector:

Total aggregate sale quantity of the Company's
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agrochemicals in 2017-18 fiscal year was 3570 M.tons
amounted to Taka 78.66 crore, which was Taka 81.78
crore in 4093 M.tons in the previous fiscal year. Due to
intensive competition in agrochemical products trading
in the country, the company's agrochemical products
sale declined by 12.78% compared to the last year.

Company's Distribution Network:

Padma Oil Company Limited has a strong marketing
network across the country. There are 2594 distributors
in the Company at different levels in the country's
important place in the marketing of fuel oils. The
present status of the distribution network is as follows:

Administrative| Filing | AgentiAgency/| Packed Point | LPG ~ [Marine |  Direct Customer
Sector |Station| Distrbutor | Dealer  (Dealer | Dealer

Chattogram| 163 | 334 125 363 51 B;ngFIadeshCArm:/, Nasyéigld

— Air Force, Coastguard, Bd.
Dhaka 74| 169 4 36 Railway, BPDB, Roads &
Bogura | 229| 237 39 | 187 Highway, LGED, Fertiizer
Khulna 1181 177 19 129 | - lfactory- Chattogram, Mongla
Total 683| 917 228 715 | 51 | port and various factories.

On the other hand, 322 agrochemicals distributors are engaged
in marketing agrochemical products across the Country.

Company's Depot Network:

Currently there are 19 depots of the Company across
the country including Main Installation to operate the
Company's operational activities. Among these, there
are a Main Installation, 8 Riverine depots, 6 Rail-head
depots, 3 Aviation depots and another depot for
receiving fuel oil directly through pipeline from
Brahmanbaria Gas Field. The Company is as solely
supplying Aviation Fuel Jet-A-1 to the domestic and
overseas aircrafts at the three international airports
(Hazrat Shahjalal International Airport, Dhaka; Hazrat
Shah Amanat International Airport, Chattogram and
Osmani International Airport, Sylhet).

Company's Storage Capacity:

The storage capacity of fuel oil at Main Installation and
various depots of the Company is as follows:

(G1.59)
fSea= /s 2059-3b
YT ZIT, 58T 385¢Q®
TR frelr, FRee ©OHO8
wieTe[R fTa, Yol 383
IR ferer, P 23085
biweF feelt, smeE 830
e TSCa, el 298>

(Qty in MT)
Depot Name 2017-18
Main Installation, Chattogram 141573
Godenail Depot, Narayangon; 30934
Daulatpur Depot, Khulna 24282
Baghabari Depot, Sirajgonj 22049
Chandpur Depot, Chandpur 4280
Ashuganj Depot, Brahmanbaria 2741
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Brahmanbaria Depot 2917
Bhairab Bazar Depot 641

Sylhet Depot 2929
Srimangal Depot 1181
Parbatipur Depot 5275
Rangpur Depot 915
Natore Depot 951
Rajshahi Depot Supply directly from Wagon
Barishal Barge Depot, Barishal 668
Jhalakati Depot 2891
Kurmitola Aviation Depot 8481
Osmani International Airport Depot 1071
Shah Amanat International Airport Depot 996
Total 254775

Financial Result: 2017-18

The Directors take immense pleasure in reporting the following

financial results of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2018:
Taka in crore

Particulars 2017-18  2016-17 %Change
Gross earning on petroleum products ~ 300.67 245.77 22.34
Net earnings on petroleum products  301.32 244,59 23.19
Operating expenses (226.42)  (197.06) 14.90
Operating Profit on petroleum 74.90 47.53 57.58
Other operating income -petroleum trade 76.26 58.85 29.58
Operating profit (loss) on Agrochemicals trading  (2.19) 0.33 (763.64)
Total operating profit 148.97 106.71 39.60
Non-operating income 32263  178.46 80.79

Profit before WPPF 47160  285.16 65.38
Contribution to WPPF (23.58)  (14.26) 65.36
Profit before Income tax 448.02  270.91 65.38
Provision for Income Tax (112.22)  (67.78) 65.57
Profit after tax 33580  203.13 65.31

Financial Review:

A financial review on the Company's financial results in
FY 2017-18 has described below:

Gross Earnings on Petroleum products

In financial year 2017-18, Gross earnings on
petroleum products stood at taka 300.67 crore with an
increase of 22.34% compared with taka 245.77 crore
of the previous year.
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Net earnings on Petroleum products:

The Company's net earnings on petroleum products is
Taka 301.32 crore in FY 2017-18 that was Taka
244 .59 crore in the previous fiscal year, registering an

increase of 23.19%.
Operating Profit on Petroleum:

Operating profit on petroleum products grew by
57.58% to taka 74.90 crore during the year under
review compared to taka 47.53 crore of the previous

year.

Operating Profit/(loss) on Agrochemicals Trading:

During the year under review, Company's Agrochemicals
trading has suffered an operating loss of Taka 2.19 crore.
Last year, in this sector, the operating profit was Taka
33.34 lac.

Total Operating Expenses:

Total operating expenses of Taka 226.42 crore in the
reported year compared to taka 197.06 crore in the
last year, registered an increase of 14.90%. Total
operating expenses increased due to increase in
annual salary of Company's officials and employees in

the reported year.
Non-operating Income:
Non-operating income was Taka 322.63 crore in FY

2017-18 compared to taka 178.46 crore in FY 2016-

17, showing an increase of 80.79 percent.
Profit before Income Tax:
Profit before Income Tax grew by 65.38% to Taka

448.02 crore from taka 270.91 crore in the previous

fiscal year.
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Profit after Tax:

Profit after tax increased to taka 335.80 crore in FY
2017-18 from taka 203.13 crore of the preceding year
registering an increase of 65.31 percent.

Returns:
(i) Returns on Assets:

Return on Assets stood at 1.98% in FY 2017-18 which
was 1.39% in the last year.

(ii) Returns on Equity

Return on Equity is 26.96% during the year that was
19.96% in the last year.

Returns on Equity (%)
3000, 2696
1996 2053

29.18
l 2341 I

2017 2018 2016-2017 2015-2016 2014-2015 2013-2014

Earnmgs per Share (EPS):

25.00 -
20.00 -
15.00 -
10.00 -

5.00 -

EPS stood at Taka 34.18 as on 30 June 2018, which
was Taka 20.68 in the last year.

Net Asset Value per share:

Net Asset value per share recorded at Taka 126.78 as
at 30 June 2018 compared to Taka 103.60 for the

previous year, showing an increase of 22.37 percent.

Net Asset Value Per Share (Taka)

2017-2018 ®
2016-2017 4
2015-2016 @
2014-2015 @
2013-2014 @
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Dividend:

Shareholders' return is always key priority to the Board
of Directors of the Company. The Board pleased to
recommend to pay 130% percent cash dividend i.e.
per share Taka 13.00 (which was 110% in the last
year) to the shareholders for the year 2017-18. The
the
shareholders at the Annual General Meeting Taka
127.70 crore will the
shareholders.

recommended dividend if approved by

be distributed among

Particulars Taka in Crore
Net profit available for appropriation 335.80
Board's recommendation for appropriation;

130% Cash Dividend 127.70
Transfer to Retained Earnings 208.10

Shareholders' Equity:

The Company's Board of Directors is constantly trying
to raise the Company's growth and the interests of
Shareholders promote. But due to requirement of huge
money for Company's future planning a major portion
of the Company's net profit is being transferred to the
Retained earnings. The fund available for distribution
is Taka 335.80 crore in FY 2017-18. Shareholders'
Fund increased by 22.38% to Taka 1,245.43 crore
from Taka 1,017.68 crore as per financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2018.

Share Capital (%) 2017-2018

EBPC

| @ Public & Private
oIcB

H Foreign

# Individuals

Paid up capital of Padma Oil Company Limited is Taka
98.23 crore during 2017-2018. Retained earnings
increased to Taka 1,147.19 crore from Taka 919.45
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crore, showing an increase of 24.77 percent. The
strong position in Shareholders' fund will enable the
Company to expand its business in future.

Shareholders' value and Market Price Information:

The Padma Oil Company Ltd. remains fully committed
to delivery of higher shareholders' value. The
Company encourages to invest in the share of the
Company by issuing profits at reasonable rates to
shareholders. Reported Market price of share of
POCL in Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited was Taka
229.60 on close of the last trading day on 30.06.2018.
Market capitalization stood at Taka 2,255.42 crore as
at 30 June 2018.

Board Meeting & Remuneration of the Directors:

The Board meets regular basis to discharge its
responsibilities. Number of Board Meeting held in FY
2017-18 and the attendance & remuneration of each
director shown in Annexure-1.

Shareholding Pattern:

The shareholding pattern is annexed at Annexure-2.

Key Operating & Financial Data
Key operating & financial data is attached in Annexure-3.

Declaration by the CEO & the CFO:

Declaration by the CEO and the CFO to the Board as
required under condition No.3 (3) of Corporate
Governance Code issued by BSEC has been attached
in Annexure- A.

Corporate Governance:

The core principles of corporate governance are
transparency, accountability and responsibilities with fair
principles. To Padma Oil Company Limited, corporate
governance means increasing the shareholders' value
by being efficient, transparent and professional;
accountable to the Government and the society, and
responsive to the environmental issues. Maximizing
value for shareholders through performance with good
governance is the responsibility of corporate
management. Bangladesh Securities & Exchange
Commission has issued the conditions regarding
Corporate Governance (Notification No.
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BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/admin/80 dated 03-06-
2018) for the companies listed with Stock Exchanges.
The Company has adequately complied with all the
conditions of Corporate Governance Code of BSEC,
listing regulations of DSE and CSE, and rules &
regulations of other regulatory bodies. The certificate
provided by the professional accountant and status of
compliance with the conditions of the Corporate
Governance Code-2018 issued by the Bangladesh
Securities and Exchange Commission is attached in
Annexure 'B' and 'C' of this Directors' Report.

Management Discussion & Analysis:

A Management Discussion and Analysis signed by
Managing Director regarding the Company's operation
and overall marketing and financial position of the
Company has been attached in Annexure- 'D'
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Board of Directors :

At present, the Board consists of nine directors. Out of nine
directors two directors are Independent directors, another
one director is Shareholder director elected from the
remaining shareholders except BPC and rest of six directors
are nominated by BPC. Board of Directors comprised of the
members of highly educated and professional qualification in
the field of business and administrative. This has given
strength for effective discharge of duties and responsibility
by the Board. The Company's Management operates the
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company's activities within the policies, manual and limits
approved by the Board. Regular Meeting is being held. As
per Bangladesh Securities & Exchange Commission's
directions, Board has one Audit Committee and one
Nomination & Remuneration Committee.

Audit Committee:

Audit Committee of Padma Oil Company Limited
comprises of three members of the Board nominated
by the Board of Directors and operates according to
the charter of the committee approved by the Board
based on Bangladesh Securities & Exchange
Commission's Corporate Governance Code.

The objective of the committee is to ensure the
Company's operation through proper and adequate
internal control. The committee reviews the financial
statements of the company and makes
recommendations. During 2017-2018 the committee
carried out the following tasks:

[ Reviewed the financial statements of FY 2017-18
submitted by the external auditors and put their
recommendations to the board;

(1 Discussed with the external auditors regarding
financial statements of 2017-18;

(1 Reviewed the quarterly and half-yearly financial
statements of 2017-2018 put their
recommendations to the board;

and

[ Reviewed revised budget of the Company during
2017-18 including budget of 2018-19 and put their
recommendations to the board.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC):

As per Bangladesh Securities & Exchange Corporate
Governance Code-2018 the Board has formed the
NRC. The NRC Committee of Padma Oil Company
Limited comprises of following four members of the
Board nominated by the Board of Directors:

1 Mr. Mohammad Igbal, Independent Director - Chairman
2 Dr. Mohd. Sher Ali, Director - Member
3 Mr. Md. Altaf Hussain Chaudhury, Director - Member
4 Mr. K M Eneyetul Karim , Independent Director - Member

NRC will operate according to the charter of the
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Committee approved by the Board on the basis of
Bangladesh Securities & Exchange commission's
Corporate Governance Code.

Chairman of the Board, CEO, CFO, CS & HIAC:

The Chairman of the Board, Managing Director cum
CEO, Chief Financial Officer (CFO), Company
Secretary(CS) and Head of Internal Audit &
Compliance (HIAC) of the Company are the different
personalities.

Contribution To National Exchequer:

Padma Oil Company Limited has contributed
significantly to the National Exchequer. As per law,
the Company deducts taxes and VAT at sources and
other levies from the various payments and services,
and deposits the same to Government exchequer.
Besides, the Company also pays tax on its earnings.
Total payment to Government exchequer during FY
2017-18 is as follows:

(Taka in Lac)

Particulars 2017-18 2016-17
Income Tax 19,345.50 15,541.02
VAT 225,945.49 191,644.90
Customs Duty 54,797.75 49,736.87
IDSC 3.41 2.98
Port dues 1,077.80 882.52
Total 301,169.96 257,808.28

Retirement & Re-nomination of Directors:

As per Companies Act 1994 and Articles of
Association of the Company, one third of the Directors
retire by rotation from the office of Directors and retired
Directors are eligible for re-appointment. Dr. Mohd.
Sher Ali, Director and Mr. Md. Altaf Hussain
Choudhury, Director will retire from the Board in the
ensuing Annual General Meeting. They are eligible for
re-appointment and they have already been re-
nominated by BPC subject to the approval of
shareholders at AGM.

Independent Director:

In compliance with the Corporate Governance Code of
BSEC, two Independent Directors have been appointed
by the Board. Mr. Mohammad Igbal and Mr. K M
Eneyetul Karim are two Independent Directors of the
Company. Among them, the appointment of the newly
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appointed Independent Director Mr. K M Eneyetul Karim
in the Board is required to be approved by the
respected shareholders at the Annual General Meeting.

Appointment of Auditors:

In the 48th Annual General Meeting M/S. Rahman
Rahman Hug and M/s. Shafiq Basak & Co., Chartered
Accountants were appointed as external Joint Auditors of
the Company for the FY 2017-18. According to
Companies Act' 1994 they will be retired at this Annual
General Meeting. Among them M/S. Rahman Rahman
Haq, Chartered Accountants is eligible for re-appointment
for the year 2018-19 and they have already expressed
their willingness for re-appointment. On the other hand,
M/S. Shafiq Basak & Co., Chartered Accountants is not
eligible for re-appointment for the year 2018-19 according
to BSEC's rule as they have conducted the Company's
audit for consecutive three years. As such, as a major
Shareholder Bangladesh Petroleum Corporation has
already nominated M/s. Rahman Mostafa Alam & Co.,
Chartered Accountants in place of M/S. Shafiq Basak &
Co., Chartered Accountants along with M/S. Rahman
Rahman Hug, Chartered Accountants as external joint
auditors for the year ending 2018-19 subject to the
honourable shareholders' approval in the ensuing AGM.

Professional Accountant for Compliance of Corporate
Governance:

Pursuant to the BSEC's directive, a proposal for
appoinment of a professional Accountant, to issue
certificate on compliance of Corporate Governance
Code issued by BSEC for the year ending on 30 June
2019, will be placed for the approval of shareholders in
the ensuing AGM.

Publication and Communication with the Shareholders:

The Company attaches high priority on timely
publication and submission of the statutory reports
i.e. Quarterly, Half-yearly and Annual Financial
Statements in details enabling the regulatory bodies
and existing & potential shareholders to make a
fair assessment on Company's overall performance.
The Board continues to ensure the compliance of
Bangladesh Security & Exchange Commission's rules
& regulations. All the price sensitive information having
any possible impact on share prices of the Company
and all financial statements are communicated to the
shareholders by publications in the national dailies,
online news portal and Company's website. The
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Annual General Meeting also creates on opportunity
for communication with shareholders.

Company's Key Achievements During 2017-2018 in
Various Aspects:

(a) Fund Management:

The Company earned significant profit in non-
operating income in this year as a result of proper fund
management of the Company's Finance department.
The Company earned non-operating income of taka
322.63 crore in this year as against Taka 178.46 crore
in the Ilast year. Along with petroleum and
agrochemicals trading the Company's financial
management policy brings significant profit in non-
operating income which provides a strong economic
basis to the Company. The main purpose and
achievement of the proper financial management's
policy is the maximum utilization of the fund in proper
way. The Company's Finance department has been
doing this job properly.

(b) Sales & Marketing:

Because of expertise and sincere efforts of officers
and employees of the Company's Sales & Marketing
department, the Company has been able to increase
the sale of fuel oil to 23.66 lac M.tons by increasing the
sale of 3.58 lac M.tons i.e 17.83 % compared to the
last year. With this increase in the sales of fuel oil the

company achieved significant growth in net profit.
(c) Operations:

During FY 2017-2018, POCL focused on making
operational activities more economical, efficient and
customer-oriented. The Company successfully
managed its customers' needs, specially the Furnace
Oil (FO) and High Speed Diesel (HSD) demand of the
power sector. With relentless efforts by the officers and
workforce at operating locations, un-interrupted
supplies were made round the clock to meet the
customers' fuel needs.

In the reported period, the Company managed
inventory efficiently and benefited the bottom line by
proficient handling of products at various
depots/locations. Operating profit on petroleum
products grew by 57.58 % to taka 74.90 crore during
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the year under review compared to taka 47.53 crore of
the previous year.

(d) Aviation:

In FY 2017-2018 our Company managed to deliver
4.05 lac M.Tons JET A-1 fuel which were 7.71% higher
than that of the last year's volume. POCL successfully
completed the pre and post Hajj operations. By loading
the fuel in the planes on time and properly, the officers
and work force of Aviation department keeps the
domestic and international flight moving round the year.

(e) Procurement & Services:

POCL has a comprehensive procurement Policy
that provides guidelines to ensure competitive
bidding through a very transparent procedure
without comprising on quality of required goods and
given timeline.

In quest of professional excellence, procurement
department is striving for continual improvement in
procurement process to cope with the present
challenging environment where strategic procurement
is as important as strategic selling.

(f) Lubricants Trade:

The sale of Lube & Grease was 4,602 MT during the
year under review, which was 1.44 % higher than that of
During 2017-2018, POCL made
supply France origin TOTAL brand marine lubricants,
TOTAL AURELIA Tl 4055 (TBN value 55) Turbine oil and
Diesel Engine oil to the power stations. Besides, POCL
made supply Total AURELIA Tl 4055 in power stations
through Flexi bag (23000-litre capacity). Besides, we
achieved outstanding business of transformer oil with

the previous year.

Rural Electrification Board (REB) unit due to competitive
price of our internationally renowned, quality product of
TOTAL brand transformer oil. In automotive sector, our
lubricants market share has been increased due to
introducing world-renowned latest version TOTAL brand
lubricating oil for latest model passenger car, truck, bus,
and heavy vehicles. At present, the Company is
marketing a wide range of lubricating oil for all modern
vehicles and sophisticated machinery.



ANNUAL REPORT

2017 - 2018

A A g AT W3 @it o=y < se
@ e 3= cfeicem gyt oo [
FACR |

o TR e AfvEas o= @rifTcs o3’
‘ BRI ST =T qCECR | 4T *TT A TS
AT FAPSIIT (GFNHFIE AZTS! W FACR G2
wfag [Jfeg sty Ree s/ @wreifae smfas
fTqqa, wdoe W IAq @I Ty GIEFIA
R AT AN I ACTH | ToF -6 A4y
e TAAE AT ANre ¢ IoifguE e
Aow ARG ~7 AIRER oS! Jwd Ty
T TP AN TN R @i e,
2T @ IS I_TFFRT e (e wpeew
S T T | @rfEE cifisee 2ok @EeEe
fesd Reem g3 Gafrmre B o
SEIite e g @Bw Aoy Rewa T
CIIR i w4l |

(R) W1 3w [IG:

A S @A T @3 [Rew gt s=ee
R (@, @A Q9w 9IR TFCETE YT ROR
@ErIfE AIGE T M AR TFT T W
8 MfTe afs uFias To | TH Afsoprrg, S 8
i G efscaifreneTs el e s ke
FE A AR AETR FI o8 wFeed [
M SIkEASERICAS (8

T GefE N TerE SR (@R NSl @de
S-S ERmT TfeTe wel Iwm qaR efenm
CHTTS BIRRAT S[CeT & SIere ARFees gl 0
A | S G SfFeR AR [(feg af s @of
T @FIfT o FNFe! @3z Afs-FAerEama
TAMTe SFFE ¢ AR e wew e | RT oA
@EAIET (N6 uo &F FAFST € 995 T &f{H-
FAGIA (AT TIPS TG R |

@wriface [T T @it fere o smpie
afecifrenes =@ ey e afem sy
TECR | TR ST FCE (I O me (ot Ty
G TR 3777 Tofe e |

(%) gy, farrer @ AR

woAe Afew el Ewcs e v [Rfwce
RO T I | s gl (oo AfsEE @it
fTarerer REtee Reiweim oy (T | SIsEl feeT s
T oAl TSPy IR AWM LT FTH ZOR

In order to operate marketing activities in properly the
Company has a technical service section. This section
is providing full technical support to our field level
officers and to our prestigious customers to reply their
queries regarding our product's specification, quality
and other technical features raised time to time during
product marketing. The Company sometimes carries
out countrywide different programs with company's
dealers, customers and end-users to launch new
lubricant product, to develop awareness to use right
lubricants into their vehicles and industrial machinery.
The Company's plan is to increase the market share of
lubricants in automotive and industrial sector with the
Company's dynamic sales and technical teams.

(g) Human Resource Management:

POCL is fully aware of the fact that its significant
growth and success is an outcome of the contributions
and commitment of the Company's greatest asset,
which is its human resources. The high caliber,
dedicated and efficient people are a source of
competitive advantage for the business and the
Company is fully focused on the important aspect.

In order to increase the personal skills of the
Company's officers and employees, and meet the
professional needs, the Company organizes training
for them to develop skilled manpower. POCL is
providing its officers and employees opportunities for
continuous development and learning through various
in-house and external courses. At present, 263 officers
and 779 employees of the Company are working
across the country.

The Company has institutionalized a program of
recruitment process under Recruitment Policy by BPC,
through competitive examination. The objective is to
attract the best talent for the Company's future
leadership.

(h) Health, Safety & Environment:

The Company always considers safety as investment.
At POCL safety is considered as a prime concern and
given due priority. We believe that all accidents
/incidents are preventable and our first aim is
excellence in Health and Safety standards in all POCL
businesses.
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Reportable injuries and incidents analysis reflect the
performance of an organization with respect to work
place safety. During the FY 2017-18 there is no
reported injury incident in POCL

Corporate Social Responsibility:

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) differs from
place to place and industry to industry. Padma Oil
Company Limited is one of the largest petroleum
marketing company and also one of the agrochemicals
marketing company in the country. As a public limited
company, its main goal is to serve to the people.
Therefore, the Company is serving to the people by
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carrying out uninterrupted supply of petroleum
products at government regulated price round the
clock in all remote areas of the country, which is a part
of Corporate Social Responsibility for POCL.
Nevertheless, POCL is also playing an important role
towards the agro-based economy of the country
through its production and marketing of agrochemical
products.

In addition to providing professional services POCL is
committed to the society for the socio-economic
development of the country. The Company established
a school at main installation, Guptakhal in Patenga
Area named, 'Padma Oil Child Couching School' in the
year 1992. As a result, the boys and girls of that area,
and employees' children are getting an opportunity to
study in the school at a low cost. The school was up to
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the fifth grade. In order to improve the quality
education and upgradation, the school name was
changed to Padma oil Model School on 01 November
2014 and on 01 January 2015 the school was
upgraded to Class VIIl. At present, the number of
students is more than 300 in the school. Besides,
according to the policy of the Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) the Company donated total
amounted to Taka 39.00 lac to various schools,
religious institutions, welfare organizations/foundations
including Bangabandhu Kriraseby Kallayan
Foundation, Honorable Prime Minister's Relief and
Welfare Fund and distribution of warm clothes among
destitute poor people during FY 2017-18.

Development Projects Completed in FY 2017-18:

The Company has taken many development programs
for business expansion. Of that, followings were
completed during FY 2017-2018:

[ Construction of 800 MT capacity storage tank at
Chandpur Depot;

1 Construction of five storied officers' residential
building at Main Installation Guptakhal, Chattogram; and
[ Construction of four storied staff quarter building at
Main Installation Guptakhal, Chattogram .

On Going Program:

The Board of Directors takes it a pleasure to inform
valued shareholders that a big budgetary development
program has been undertaken for business expansion
and smooth supply of fuel to the public by establishing
new depots, storage tanks and other physical
infrastructures. These are namely;

1) The construction of 1.00 lac MT storage capacity
Mongla Oil Installation on 17-acre land of BPC
adjoining Mongla Port is in the final stage. The
approved cost of the project has been fixed at Taka
204.56 crore and our company is financing one-third of
the total cost. It is expected that depot operations will
start within March, 2019

2) The construction of 23 storied Head office multi-
storied building having 2 basements and 1 semi-
basement in Agrabad Commercial Area of Chattogram
on 0.42-acre of the company's owned land is in
progress.
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3) Consultant has been appointed for construction of
12-storied commercial building with two additional
basements in the Company's 1.88-acres owned land at
Paribag, Dhaka office. At present, BUET is vetting the
drawing/design of the project provided by the
consultant. The tender will be floated to appoint a
contractor for the construction of the building very soon.

4) The DPP preparation has been completed for the
installation of Jet A-1 underground pipeline within
Jahurul Haque Base, Bd. Air force, Chattogram and
Shah Amanat Airport, Chattogram to supply Jet A-1
fuel to the Company's Jet A-1 Depot adjoining Shah
Amanat Airport through pipeline from the Company's
Main Installation in Patenga and has olready sent to
the concerned Ministry through BPC for approval.

Future Action Plan to increase the Company's
operating capability:

1) A project of automation has been undertaken to
modernize operational activities at Main Installation
of three oil marketing companies including Padma
Oil Company. For this purpose, the appointment of
international consultant is under process. The
operational activities in various depots established
in different places of the country will also be
modernized in phases.

2) To establish riverine depot at Bhairab Bazar

replacing existing barge depot;

3) To establish riverine depot at
existing barge depot;

Barishal replacing

4) To increase storage capacity of fuel oil according to
the demand,;

5) To bring sales and accounts related activities of the
Company's all offices/installation/depots under
automation;

6) To modernize firefighting facilities in the company's
Main Installation and depots;

7) To arrange the purchase of infrastructural facilities
and necessary equipment including land for the
purpose of supplying aviation fuel at Rajshahi,
Sayedpur, Jashore, Barishal Airport. Besides, to
establish necessary infrastructure including land
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arrangement and the purchase of the relevant
equipment to supply Jet A -1 at the airport when the
airport will set up by the Government at any place in
the country in future; and

8) Acquisition and implementation of financing profitable
projects in unused land at different places of the
Company's owned land.

Industrial Relation:

The industrial relation climate in the Company was
remained harmonious and peaceful during the year.
The Company has been taking initiatives for exploiting
the inherent strengths of its people and improving the

work culture and operating & maintenance practices.
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ANNEXURE-1

Padma Oil Company Limited

i. Directors' Declaration
The Directors also report that:

a) The financial statements of the Company present a true and fair view of the Company's state of
affairs, result of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

b) Proper books of accounts as required by law have been maintained.

c) Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of the financial
statements and that the accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgement.

d) The financial statements were prepared in accordance with International Accounting Standards (IAS)
as applicable in Bangladesh.

e) The Internal Control System is sound in design and effectively implemented and monitored.
f) There are no significant doubts upon the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.
g) There is no significant deviation from the operating result of the last year.

ii. The number of Board Meeting and the Attendance & Remuneration of Directors during the year 2017-2018.

Name of Directors Designation M.eeting held Attended in Ren.muneration
While a Member No.of Meeting (in Taka)

Mr. Nazimuddin Chowdhury Ex Chairman 09 09 51,000
Mr. Md. Akram Al Hossain Ex Chairman 02 02 16,000
Mr. A.R.M. Nazmus Sakib Ex Director 07 05 25,000
Mr. Md. Ekhlasur Rahman Director 04 03 24,000
Mr. Md. Nurul Amin Ex Director 01 01 5,000
Mr. Sayed Mohammad Mozammel Haque | Ex Director 08 07 41,000
Mr. Md. Altaf Hussain Chaudhury | Director 02 02 16,000
Begum Farzana Mamtaz Ex Director 01 01 5,000
Dr. Mohd. Sher Ali Director 10 08 52,000
Mr. Ahmed Jamal Khan Chowdhuri | ExIndependent Director 07 06 30,000
Mr. Mohammad Igbal Independent Director 04 04 32,000
Mr. Mohammed Abdul Awwal Shareholder Director 1 10 59,000
Mr. Md. Arifuzzaman Miah Tutul | Director 11 11 67,000
Mr. Md. Masudur Rahman Director 11 11 67,000

Total | 490,000
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(i) Pattern of Shareholding as on 30 June 2018
NAME OF THE SHAREHOLDERS Nos. of Share | Percentage
of Share
A. |BANGLADESH PETRO. CORPORATION 49455662 50.35
B. [PUBLIC INSTITUTIONS:
AGRANI BANK LTD 560173
JANATA BANK 1777056
SONALI BANK 151000
BASIC BANK LTD 175899
BANGLADESH SHILPA BANK 346414
BANGLADESH SHILPA RIN SANGSTHA 2213127
BANGLADESH SAMABAYA BANK LTD. 196465
BANGLADESH FUND 1636677
OTHERS 128054 7184865 7.31
C. |ICB:
ICB CAPITAL MANAGEMENT LTD. 163074
ICB ASSET MANAGEMENT CO. LTD. 151070
ICB 7162966
ICB UNIT FUND 240561
ICB PORTFOLIO, RAJSHAHI 123140
ICB AMCL UNIT FUND 168000
OTHERS 297015 8305826 8.46
D. |PRIVATE INSTITUTIONS:
JANATA CAPITAL & INVEST. LTD. 201000
DBL SECURITIES LTD. 461068
PEDROLLO NK LTD. 5498000
UNITED ENTERPRISES & CO LTD 5748617
BDBL SECURITIES LTD. 180000
PUBALI BANK LTD. 100000
FIRST SECURITY ISLAMI BANK LTD 203158
AIBL EMPLOYEE'S GRATUITY FUND 199669
AB BANK LTD. 321333
UTTARA MOTORS LIMITED 334125
UTTARA AUTOMOBILE MANUFAC.LTD. 247252
UTTARA MOTOR CORPORATION LIMIT 131979
UTTARA AUTOMOBILES LIMITED 167062
THE PREMIER BANK LTD. 146075
PREMIER BANK LTD(ISLAMIC BANK) 156400
UECL 200000
TBIL (RECOVERY PORTFOLIO) 293018
MTB SECURITIES LTD. 100000
DELTA LIFE INSURANCE CO. LTD. 108273
AMERICAN LIFE INSURANCE COMPAN 444011
SBL CAPITAL MGT.LTD. OWN PORT. 135000
AGRANI EQUITY & INVEST. LTD. 444287
SONALI INVESTMENT LIMITED 175478
RUPALI INVESTMENT LIMITED 195923
OTHERS 1363185 17554913 17.87
E. |[FOREIGN INVESTORS: 2430553 2.47
F. |INDIVIDUALS: 13300931 13.54
TOTAL 98232750 100.00
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Particular Nos. of Share| ¢ qhare Remarks
(ii)| Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Company

Secretary, Chief Financial Officer (CFO), Head of

Internal Audit and their spouses and minor children :

Directors:

Mr. Md. Shamsur Rahman - - Nominated by
BPC.

Mr. Mohammed Igbal - Independent

Director

Mr. Md. Ekhlasur Rahman - - Nominated by
BPC.

Mr. Dr. Mohd. Sher Ali - - Do

Mr. Md. Altaf Hussain Chawdhury - - "

Mr. Mohammed Abdul Awwal 10945 0.01 Shareholder

. Director
Mr. K.M Eneyetul Karim Independent
Director
Mr. Md. Arifuzzaman Miah Tutul Nominated by
- - BPC

Mr. Md. Masudur Rahman Do

Chief Executive Officer and his spouses & minor

children:

Mr. Md. Masudur Rahman - -
CFO & Company Secretary and his spouse & minor children:

Mr. Sohel Abdullah - -
Mr. Kanchan Chandra Shom, FCMA - -

Head of Internal Audit and his Spouse & minor children:
Mr. C.M Ziaul Hassan - -

(iii)| Executives (Top five salaried persons other than CEO,
CFO, CS, HIA).

1. Mr. Md. Abu Saleh Igbal GM (Ops. & Planning) - -
2. Mr. Md. Aminul Haque GM - -
3. Mr. Md. Numan Ahmed Taffader DGM - -

4. Mr. Md. Rezaul Haq DGM - -
5. Mr. Md. Mahbubul Alam DGM (Aviation) - -

(iv)| Shareholding ten percent (10%) or more voting
interest in the company.

1. Bangladesh Petroleum Corporation 5035
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Five years Performance at a glance
Taka in Lac
¢ |Particulars 2017-18 2016-17 2015-16 2014-15 2013-14
g Tangible fixed assets 22,473.17 21,907.16 20,387.64 15,944.70 12,896.06
"B |Others current assets 1,364,166.14 | 1,098,310.65 932,871.70 778,880.88 |  633,314.88
p_(o Cash at bank balances 311,662.98 339,095.78 183,132.66 167,322.79 | 256,024.04
s [Total assets 1,698,302.29 1,459,313.59 1,136,392.000 962,148.37| 902,234.98
"0 |liabilities & provisions 1,573,759.63 1,357,545.45 1,045,113.10 879,782.22 |  829,325.09
g Equity 124,542.66 101,768.14 91,278.90 82,366.15 72,909.89
& |rotal liabilities 1,698,302.29] 1,459,313.59 1,136,392.000 962,148.37| 902,234.98
= Net assets per share (Taka) 126.78 103.60 92.92 83.85 74.22
Operating earnings
on petroleum products 30,131.55 24,459.23 18,691.46 18,097.13 18,382.54
on agro-chemicals (218.78) 33.34 130.32 268.89 182.18
Other income 39,889.14 23,730.14 2224521 22,108.66 24 477.15
Total earnings 69,801.91 48,222.71 41,066.99 40,474.68|  43,041.87
*? Overheads 20,438.35 17,902.11 13,589.01 12,175.78 11,977.03
;‘:Qi Financial expenses 2,203.70 1,804.26 1,131.82 1,129.66 1,145.27
8 |Contribution to WPPWFE 2,357.99 1,425.82 1,317.31 1,358.46 1,495.98
L‘g Total expenses 25,000.04 21,132.19 16,038.14 14,663.90 14,618.28
E Profit before income tax 44,801.87 27,090.52 25,028.85 25,810.78 28,423.59
Provision for income tax 11,221.75 6,778.01 6,292.82 6,531.25 7,151.04
Profit after income tax 33,580.12 20,312.51 18,736.03 19,279.53 21,272.55
Return on shareholders funds (%) 26.96 19.96 20.53 23.41 29.18
Return on Assets (%) 1.98 1.39 1.65 2.00 2.36
Farning per share (Taka) 34.18 20.68 19.07 19.63 21.66
Human resources ( Nos ) 1042 1110 1145 1172 1091
g o Executives 203 287 293 295 272
£ g[Staff 779 823 852 877 819
§° 'g Total earnings per employee 065.54 43.44 35.87 34.53 39.45
g8 E Operating cost per employee 21.41 17.41 13.02 11.55 12.35
= Net profit per employee 42.07 24.41 21.86 22.02 26.05
Cost to income ratio 32.44 40.87 35.85 32.87 30.49
> O [Authorized capital 10,000.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 10,000.00
§ :% Paid-up capital 9,823.27 9,823.27 9,823.27 9,823.27 9,823.27
g $ |Retained earnings 114,719.39 91,944.87 81,455.63 72,542.88 63,086.62
£ Adequacy current ratio 1.08 1.07 1.09 1.09 1.09
_5 Market Price per share ( DSE ) (Taka) 229.60 255.90 187.80 199.50 256.00
g‘ é Dividend - Cash ( Per share ) 130% 110% 100% 100% 100%
73 § Dividend - Stock - - - - -
£ | Capital carning ratio 3.42 2.07 1.91 1.96 2.17
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Annexure-A
[As per condition No. 1(5)(xxvi)]

PADMA OIL COMPANY LIMITED

Declaration by CEO and CFO
10 November 2018

To

The Board of Directors
Padma Oil Company Limited
Strand Road, Chattogram

Subject: Declaration on Financial Statements for the year ended on 30.06.2018

Dear Sirs,

Pursuant to the condition No. 1(5)(xxvi) imposed vide the Commission™s Notification No.
BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 Dated 03 June 2018 under section 2CC of the Securities and
Exchange Ordinance, 1969. we do hereby declare that:

1) The Financial Statements of Padma Oil Company Limited for the year ended on 30.06.2018 have been
prepared in compliance with International Accounting Standards (IAS) or International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS), as applicable in the Bangladesh and any departure there from has been
adequately disclosed;

2) The estimates and judgments related to the financial statements were made on a prudent and reasonable
basis, in order for the financial statements to reveal a true and fair view;

3) The form and substance of transactions and the Company’s state of affairs have been reasonably and
fairly presented in its financial statements;

4) To ensure above, the Company has taken proper and adequate care in installing a system of internal
control and maintenance of accounting records;

5) Our internal auditors have conducted periodic audits to provide reasonable assurance that the
established policies and procedures of the Company were consistently followed; and

6) The management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements is
appropriate and there exists no material uncertainty related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

In this regard, we also certify that:-
i) We have reviewed the financial statements for the year ended on 30.06.2018 and that to the best of
our knowledge and belief:

a) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain
statements that might be misleading;

b) these statements collectively present true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in
compliance with existing accounting standands and applicable laws.

ii) There are, to the best of knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during
the year which are fraudulent, illegal or in violation of the code of conduct for the company’s Board
of Directors or its members.

Sincerely yours,

— g /%i“&\%

(Md. Masudur Rahman) (Kanchan Chandra Shom, FCMA)
CEO & Managing Director Chief Financial Officer (CFO)
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Annexure -B

Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & CO.

Chartered Accountants

Certificate as per condition No. 1(5) (xxvi1)
Report to the Shareholders of Padma Oil Company Limited on compliance on the
Corporate Governance Code

We have examined the compliance status to the Corporate Governance Code by Padma Oil
Company Limited for the year ended on 30 June 2018. The Code relates to the Notification No.
SEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated 03 June 2018 of the Bangladesh Securities and
Exchange Commission.

Such compliance with the Corporate Governance Code is the responsibility of the Company. Our
examination was limited to the procedures and implementation thereof as adopted by the
Management in ensuring compliance to the conditions of the Corporate Governance Code.

This is a scrutiny and verification and an independent audit on compliance of the conditions of the
Corporate Government Code as well as the provision of relevant Bangladesh Secretarial Standards
(BSS) as adopted by Institute of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh (ICSB) in so far as those
standards are not inconsistent with any Condition of this Corporate Governance Code.

We state that we have obtained all the information and explanations, which we have required, and
after due scrutiny and verification thereof, we report that, in our opinion:

a) The Company has complied with the conditions of the Corporate Governance Code as
stipulated in the above mentioned Corporate Governance Code issued by the
Commission, subject to the remarks and observation as reported in the attached
compliance status.

b) The Company has complied with the provisions of the relevant Bangladesh Secretarial
Standards (BSS) as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh
(ICSB) as required by this code.

c) Proper books and records have been kept by the company as required under the
Companies Act, 1994, the securities laws and other relevant laws; and

d)  The Governance of the company is satisfactory.

Place Chattogram For Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co
Chartered Accountants

Dated 08 January 2019

Showkat Hossain, FCA
Senior Partner
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Annexure- C
[As per condition No. 1(5)(xxvii)]

PADMA OIL COMPANY LIMITED

Status of compliance with the conditions imposed by the Commission's Notification No.
BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80, dated 3 June 2018 issued under section 2CC of the
Securities and Exchange Ordinance, 1969 ( Report Under Condition No. 9):

» Compliance status
C°n{‘1;tl°“ Title . Not Remarks (if any)
Complied complied

K 2 [ s [+ [ 5 |
’ 1 ‘ Board of Directors: ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘
1.1 Size of the Board of Directors: The total number of members of a , ggg%g}%?réﬁigfs)

company’s Board of Directors (hereinafter referred to as “Board”) shall not
be less than 5 (five) and more than 20 (twenty).
1.2 Independent Directors: All companies shall have effective representation
of independent directors on their Boards, so that the Board, as a group,
includes core competencies considered relevant in the context of each
company; for this purpose, the companies shall comply with the following:
1.2(a) At least one-fifth (1/5) of the total number of directors in the company’s Board There was 1 (One)
a ] . . v ndependent
shall be independent directors; any fraction shall be considered to the next Pgié?_cg)rindthed
oard an

integer or whole number for calculating number of independent director(s); it g s

was appointed on
27 December 2018

’ 1.2(b) ‘ For the purpose of this clause “independent director” means a director - ‘ ‘ ‘

1.2(b)i) who either does not hold any share in the company or holds less than one
percent (1%) shares of the total paid-up shares of the company;

1.2(b)ii) | who is not a sponsor of the company or is not connected with the company’s
any sponsor or director or nominated director or shareholder of the company
or any of its associates, sister concerns, subsidiaries and parents or holding The Independent
entities who holds one percent (1%) or more shares of the total paid-up v/ Director declared
shares of the company on the basis of family relationship and his or her his compliances.
family members also shall not hold above mentioned shares in the company:
Provided that spouse, son, daughter, father, mother, brother, sister, son-in-
law and daughter-in-law shall be considered as family members;

1.2(b)iii) | who has not been an executive of the company in  immediately preceding 2
(two) financial years;

1.2(b)iv) | who does not have any other relationship, whether pecuniary or otherwise,
with the company or its subsidiary or associated companies;

1.2(b)v) | who is not a member or TREC (Trading Right Entitlement Certificate) holder,
director or officer of any stock exchange;

1.2(b)vi) | who is not a shareholder, director excepting independent director or officer of any
member or TREC holder of stock exchange or an intermediary of the capital market;

1.2(b)vii) | who is not a partner or an executive or was not a partner or an executive
during the preceding 3 (three) years of the concerned company’s statutory v

D

audit firm or audit firm engaged in internal audit services or audit firm °
conducting special audit or professional certifying compliance of this Code.

1.2(b)viii)| who is not independent director in more than 5 (five) listed companies v/ Do

1.2(b)ix) | Who has not been convicted by a court of competent jurisdiction as a
defaulter in payment of any loan or any advance to a bank or a Non-Bank v Do
Financial Institution (NBFI)
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’ 1.2(b)x) ‘ who has not been convicted for a criminal offence involving moral turpitude ‘ v/ ‘ ‘ Do
1.2 (c) The independent director(s) shall be appointed by the Board and approved by v/
the shareholders in the Annual General Meeting (AGM)
1.2 (d) The post of independent director(s) cannot remain vacant for more than 90 7
(ninety) days
12(e) The tenure of office of an independent director shall be for a period of 3 (three) 7
years, which may be extended for 1 (one) tenure only
’ 1.3 ‘ Qualification of Independent Director (ID) ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘
1.3(a) Independent director shall be a knowledgeable individual with integrity who is able ;Zebqauc%ﬂr%ii%ngf
to ensure compliance with financial laws, regulatory requirements and corporate 4 D justify his
laws and can make meaningful contribution to the business cbllifoe g e,
’1.3(b) ‘ Independent director shall have following qualifications: ‘ ‘ ‘
1.3(b)i) Business Leader who is or was a promoter or director of an unlisted company having
minimum paid-up capital of Tk. 100.00 million or any listed company or a member of Not Applicable
any national or international chamber of commerce or business association; or
1.3(b)ii) Corporate Leader who is or was a top level executive not lower than Chief
Executive Officer or Managing Director or Deputy Managing Director or Chief
Financial Officer or Head of Finance or Accounts or Company Secretary or Head Not Applicable
of Internal Audit and Compliance or Head of Legal Service or a candidate with
equivalent position of an unlisted company having minimum paid-up capital of Tk.
100.00 million or of a listed company; or
1.3(b)iii) Former official of government or statutory or autonomous or regulatory body in the
position not below 5th Grade of the national pay scale, who has at least Not Applicable
educational background of bachelor degree in economics or commerce or
business or Law; or
1.3(b)iv) | University Teacher who has educational background in Economics or Commerce R
or Business Studies or Law; or P
1.3(b)v) Professional who is or was an advocate practicing at least in the High Court
Division of Bangladesh Supreme Court or a Chartered Accountant or Cost and P
Management Accountant or Chartered Financial Analyst or Chartered Certified
Accountant or Certified Public Accountant or Chartered Management Accountant
or Chartered Secretary or equivalent qualification
1.3(¢c) The independent director shall have at least 10 (ten) years of experiences in any v
field mentioned in clause (b)
1.3(d) In special cases, the above qualifications or experiences may be relaxed subject Not Applicable
to prior approval of the Commission.
1.4 Duality of Chairperson of the Board of Directors and Managing Director
or Chief Executive Officer.-
1.4(a) The positions of the Chairperson of the Board and the Managing Director (MD) and/or v
Chief Executive Officer (CEQ) of the company shall be filled by different individuals;
1.4(b) The Managing Director (MD) and/or Chief Executive Officer (CEQ) of a listed v
company shall not hold the same position in another listed company;
1.4(c) The Chairperson of the Board shall be elected from among the non-executive v
directors of the company;
1.4(d) The Board shall clearly define respective roles and responsibilities of the v
Chairperson and the Managing Director and/or Chief Executive Officer;
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1.4(e)

In the absence of the Chairperson of the Board, the remaining members may
elect one of themselves from non executive directors as Chairperson for that
particular Board’s meeting; the reason of absence of the regular Chairperson shall
be duly recorded in the minutes.

Not Applicable

1.5

The Directors’ Report to Shareholders:

The Board of the company shall include the following additional statements or
disclosures in the Directors’ Report prepared under section 184 of the Companies
Act, 1994 (Act No. XVIII of 1994):-

1.5(i)

An industry outlook and possible future developments in the industry;

The Directors'
report represent
complience of this
guideline

] 1.5(ii) \

The segment-wise or product-wise performance

Do

1.5(iii)

Risks and concerns including internal and external risk factors, threat to
sustainability and negative impact on environment, if any;

Do

1.5(iv)

A discussion on Cost of Goods sold, Gross Profit Margin and Net Profit Margin,
where applicable

Do

1.5(v)

A discussion on continuity of any extraordinary activities and their implications
(gain or loss);

No such matter
has arisen during
the year.

1.5(vi)

A detailed discussion on related party transactions along with a statement
showing amount, nature of related party, nature of transactions and basis of
transactions of all related party transactions;

1.5(vii)

A statement of utilization of proceeds raised through public issues, rights issues
and/or any other instruments

No such matter
has arisen during
the year.

1.5(viii)

An explanation if the financial results deteriorate after the company goes for Initial
Public Offering (IPO), Repeat Public Offering (RPO), Rights Share Offer, Direct
Listing, etc.;

Not Applicable

1.5(ix)

An explanation on any significant variance that occurs between Quarterly
Financial performances and Annual Financial Statements;

1.5(x)

A statement of remuneration paid to the directors including independent directors;

1.5(xi)

A statement that the financial statements prepared by the management of the
issuer company present fairly its state of affairs, the result of its operations, cash
flows and changes in equity;

1.5(xii)

A statement that proper books of account of the issuer company have been
maintained;

1.5(xiii)

A statement that appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied
in preparation of the financial statements and that the accounting estimates are
based on reasonable and prudent judgment

1.5(xiv)

A statement that International Accounting Standards (IAS) or International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as applicable in Bangladesh, have
been followed in preparation of the financial statements and any
departure there from has been adequately disclosed;

1.5(xv)

A statement that the system of internal control is sound in design and has been
effectively implemented and monitored

1.5(xvi)

A statement that minority shareholders have been protected from abusive actions
by, or in the interest of, controlling shareholders acting either directly or indirectly
and have effective means of redress;
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1.5(xvii) | A statement that there is no significant doubt upon the issuer company’s ability to v
continue as a going concern, if the issuer company is not considered to be a
going concern, the fact along with reasons there of shall be disclosed;

1.5(xviii) | An explanation that significant deviations from the last year's operating results of v
the issuer company shall be highlighted and the reasons thereof shall be
explained.

1.5(xix) | A statement where key operating and financial data of at least preceding 5 (five) v
years shall be summarized;

1.5(xx) | An explanation on the reasons if the issuer company has not declared dividend v i cash
(cash or stock) for the year;

1.5(xxi) | Board’s statement to the effect that no bonus share or stock dividend has been or s i i"geégf‘ag‘éide"d
shall be declared as interim dividend;

1.5(xxii) | The total number of Board meetings held during the year and attendance by each v
director;

1.5(xxiii) | A report on the pattern of shareholding disclosing the aggregate number
of shares (along with name-wise details where stated below) held by:-

1.5(xxiii) | Parent or Subsidiary or Associated Companies and other related parties (name- v

a) wise details);

1.5(xxiii) | Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary, Chief Financial Officer, 4

b) Head of Internal Audit and Compliance and their spouses and minor children
(name-wise details);

1.5(xxiii) | Executives; and v

c)

1.5(xxiii) | Shareholders holding ten percent (10%) or more voting interest in the v

d) company (name-wise details);

Explanation: For the purpose of this clause, the expression “executive” means
top 5 (five) salaried employees of the company, other than the Directors, Chief
Executive Officer, Company Secretary, Chief Financial Officer and Head of
Internal Audit and Compliance.

1.5(xxiv) | In case of the appointment or reappointment of a director, a disclosure
on the following information to the shareholders:

1.5(xxiv) | a brief resume of the director; v

(a

1.5(xxiv) | nature of his or her expertise in specific functional areas; and v

(b)

1.5(xxiv) | names of companies in which the person also holds the directorship and the v

(c) membership of committees of the Board;

1.5(xxv) | A Management’s Discussion and Analysis signed by CEO or MD presenting v
detailed analysis of the company’s position and operations along with a brief
discussion of changes in the financial statements, among others, focusing on:

’ 1.5(xxv)a)‘ accounting policies and estimation for preparation of financial statements; v

1.5(xxv)b)| changes in accounting policies and estimation, if any, clearly describing the effect v
on financial performance or results and financial position as well as cash flows in
absolute figure for such changes;

1.5(xxv)c)| comparative analysis (including effects of inflation) of financial performance or v
results and financial position as well as cash flows for current financial year with
immediate preceding five years explaining reasons thereof;

S8
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1.5(xxv)d)| compare such financial performance or results and financial position as well as v
cash flows with the peer industry scenario;

’ 1.5(xxv)e)‘ briefly explain the financial and economic scenario of the country and the globe; ‘ v ‘ ‘

1.5(xxv)f) | risks and concerns issues related to the financial statements, explaining such risk v
and concerns mitigation plan of the company; and

1.5(xxv)g)| future plan or projection or forecast for company’s operation, performance and v
financial position, with justification thereof, i.e., actual position shall be explained
to the shareholders in the next AGM;

1.5(xxvi) | Declaration or certification by the CEO and the CFO to the Board as required v
under condition No. 3(3) shall be disclosed as per Annexure-A; and

1.5(xxvii) | The report as well as certificate regarding compliance of conditions of this Code v
as required under condition No. 9 shall be disclosed as per Annexure-B and
Annexure-C.

’ 1.6 ‘ Meetings of the Board of Directors ‘ ‘ ‘
The company shall conduct its Board meetings and record the minutes of the v
meetings as well as keep required books and records in line with the provisions of
the relevant Bangladesh Secretarial Standards (BSS) as adopted by the Institute
of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh (ICSB) in so far as those standards are
not inconsistent with any condition of this Code.
’ 1.7 ‘ Code of Conduct for the Chairperson, other Board members and Chief Executive Officer ‘ ‘ ‘

1.7(a) The Board shall lay down a code of conduct, based on the recommendation of the v/ |mp|éjnqgﬁtration
Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) at condition No. 6, for the Chairperson Process as per
of the Board, other board members and Chief Executive Officer of the company; BSEC Code

1.7(b) The code of conduct as determined by the NRC shall be posted on the website of the Do
company including, among others, prudent conduct and behavior; confidentiality; conflict v
of interest; compliance with laws, rules and regulations; prohibition of insider trading;
relationship with environment, employees, customers and suppliers; and independency.

’ 2 ‘ Governance of Board of Directors of Subsidiary Company.- ‘ ‘ ‘

2(a) Provisions relating to the composition of the Board of the holding company shall be N/A Poﬁa'-vgc’aﬁfy"m
made applicable to the composition of the Board of the subsidiary company; subsidiary

company.

2(b) At least 1 (one) independent director on the Board of the holding company shall be a N/A
director on the Board of the subsidiary company; 22

2(c) The minutes of the Board meeting of the subsidiary company shall be placed for review N/A e
at the following Board meeting of the holding company;

2(d) The minutes of the respective Board meeting of the holding company shall state that N/A be
they have reviewed the affairs of the subsidiary company also;

2(e) The Audit Committee of the holding company shall also review the financial statements, N/A be
in particular the investments made by the subsidiary company.

3 Managing Director (MD) or Chief Executive Officer (CEO), Chief Financial Officer

, Head of Internal Audit and Compliance and Company Secretary (CS).-
(CFO), Head of Internal Audit and Compli (HIAC) and C Secretary (CS)
’3.1 ‘ Appointment ‘ ‘ ‘

3.1(a) The Board shall appoint a Managing Director (MD) or Chief Executive Officer (CEO), a v
Company Secretary (CS), a Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and a Head of Internal Audit
and Compliance (HIAC);
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3.1(b) The positions of the Managing Director (MD) or Chief Executive Officer (CEO), Company
Secretary (CS), Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and Head of Internal Audit and v
Compliance (HIAC) shall be filled by different individuals;
3.1(c) The MD or CEO, CS, CFO and HIAC of a listed company shall not hold any executive
position in any other company at the same time; v
3.1(d) The Board shall clearly define respective roles, responsibilities and duties of the CFO,
the HIAC and the CS; 4
3.1(e) The MD or CEO, CS, CFO and HIAC shall not be removed from their position without
approval of the Board as well as immediate dissemination to the Commission and stock v
exchange(s).
’ 3.2 ‘ Requirement to attend Board of Directors’ Meetings ‘ ‘
The MD or CEO, CS, CFO and HIAC of the company shall attend the meetings of v/
the Board:
Provided that the CS, CFO and/or the HIAC shall not attend such part of a
meeting of the Board which involves consideration of an agenda item relating to
their personal matters.
3.3 Duties of Managing Director (MD) or Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and
Chief Financial Officer (CFO)
3.3(a) The MD or CEO and CFO shall certify to the Board that they have reviewed v
financial statements for the year and that to the best of their knowledge and belief:
3.3(a)i) | these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any v/
material fact or contain statements that might be misleading; and
3.3(a)ii) | these statements together present a true and fair view of the company’s affairs 4
and are in compliance with existing accounting standards and applicable laws;
3.3(b) The MD or CEO and CFO shall also certify that there are, to the best of v/
knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the company during the
year which are fraudulent, illegal or in violation of the code of conduct for the
company’s Board or its members;
’ 3.3(c) ‘ The certification of the MD or CEO and CFO shall be disclosed in the Annual Report. ‘ v/ ‘
4 Board of Directors’ Committee.-
For ensuring good governance in the company, the Board shall have at least
following sub-committees:
14() | Audit Committee; and | v \
4(ii) Nomination and Remuneration Committee. v ngﬁ’;‘gﬁ ‘gf“Q be
Board meeting
held on 10
November 2018.
B | AUDIT COMMITTEE: \ \
’ 5.1 ‘ Responsibility to the Board of Directors: ‘ ‘
5.1(a) The company shall have an Audit Committee as a subcommittee of the v
Board;
5.1(b) The Audit Committee shall assist the Board in ensuring that the financial v In Pr:igﬁigT.SR is
statements reflect true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and
in ensuring a good monitoring system within the business;
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5.1(c)

The Audit Committee shall be responsible to the Board; the duties of the
Audit Committee shall be clearly set forth in writing.

v

In Practice.The
duties are clearly
written in the TOR
of the Audit
Committee

5.2

Constitution of the Audit Committee: ‘

5.2(a)

The Audit Committee shall be composed of at least 3 (three) members;

The Audit
Committee has
been comprised of
3(three) members

5.2(b)

The Board shall appoint members of the Audit Committee who shall be non-
executive directors of the company excepting Chairperson of the Board and
shall include at least 1 (one) independent director;

5.2(c)

All members of the audit committee should be “financially literate” and at least
1 (one) member shall have accounting or related financial management
background and 10 (ten) years of such experience;

Explanation: The term “financially literate” means the ability to read and
understand the financial statements like statement of financial position,
statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and
cash flows statement and a person will be considered to have accounting or
related financial management expertise if he or she possesses professional
qualification or Accounting or Finance graduate with at least 10 (ten) years of
corporate management or professional experiences.

5.2(d)

When the term of service of any Committee member expires or there is any
circumstance causing any Committee member to be unable to hold office before
expiration of the term of service, thus making the number of the Committee
members to be lower than the prescribed number of 3 (three) persons, the Board
shall appoint the new Committee member to fill up the vacancy immediately or not
later than 1 (one) month from the date of vacancy in the Committee to ensure
continuity of the performance of work of the Audit Committee;

The board have
appointed
members in due
time and no
vacancy occurred.

] 5.2(¢) \

The company secretary shall act as the secretary of the Committee; ‘

5.2(f)

The quorum of the Audit Committee meeting shall not constitute without at least 1
(one) independent director.

Chairman of the Audit Committee: \

5.3(a)

The Board shall select 1 (one) member of the Audit Committee to be Chairperson
of the Audit Committee, who shall be an independent director;

5.3(b)

In the absence of the Chairperson of the Audit Committee, the remaining
members may elect one of themselves as Chairperson for that particular meeting,
in that case there shall be no problem of constituting a quorum as required under
condition No. 5(4)(b) and the reason of absence of the regular Chairperson shall
be duly recorded in the minutes.

5.3(c)

Chairperson of the Audit Committee shall remain present in the Annual General
Meeting (AGM):

Provided that in absence of Chairperson of the Audit Committee, any other
member from the Audit Committee shall be selected to be present in the annual
general meeting (AGM) and reason for absence of the Chairperson of the Audit
Committee shall be recorded in the minutes of the AGM

5.4

Meeting of the Audit Committee ‘

| 5.4(a)

The Audit Committee shall conduct at least its four meetings in a financial year: ‘

Provided that any emergency meeting in addition to regular meeting may be
convened at the request of any one of the members of the Committee;

5.4(b)

The quorum of the meeting of the Audit Committee shall be constituted in presence
of either two members or two-third of the members of the Audit Committee,
whichever is higher, where presence of an independent director is a must.
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5.5 Role of Audit Committee:
The Audit Committee shall:
’ 5.5(a) ‘ Oversee the financial reporting process; ‘ ‘ ‘
’ 5.5(b) ‘ monitor choice of accounting policies and principles; ‘ ‘ ‘
5.5(c) monitor Internal Audit and Compliance process to ensure that it is adequately
resourced, including approval of the Internal Audit and Compliance Plan and review
of the Internal Audit and Compliance Report;
’ 5.5(d) \ oversee hiring and performance of external auditors; \ \
5.5(e) hold meeting with the external or statutory auditors for review of the annual financial
statements before submission to the Board for approval or adoption;
5.5(f) review along with the management, the annual financial statements before
submission to the Board for approval;
5.5(g) review along with the management, the quarterly and half yearly financial
statements before submission to the Board for approval;
’ 5.5(h) ‘ review the adequacy of internal audit function; ‘ ‘ ‘
5.5(i) review the Management’s Discussion and Analysis before disclosing in the Annual
Report; the adequacy of internal audit function;
’ 5.5(j) ‘ review statement of all related party transactions submitted by the management; ‘ ‘ ‘
5.5(k) review Management Letters or Letter of Internal Control weakness issued by
statutory auditors;
5.5(1) oversee the determination of audit fees based on scope and magnitude, level of
expertise deployed and time required for effective audit and evaluate the
performance of external auditors; and
5.5(m) oversee whether the proceeds raised through Initial Public Offering (IPO) or Repeat
Public Offering (RPO) or Rights Share Offer have been utilized as per the purposes
stated in relevant offer document or prospectus approved by the Commission:
Provided that the management shall disclose to the Audit Committee about the i
" q q . Not Applicable
uses or applications of the proceeds by major category (capital expenditure, sales
and marketing expenses, working capital, etc.), on a quarterly basis, as a part of
their quarterly declaration of financial results: Provided further that on an annual
basis, the company shall prepare a statement of the proceeds utilized for the
purposes other than those stated in the offer document or prospectus for publication
in the Annual Report along with the comments of the Audit Committee.
’ 5.6 ‘ Reporting of the Audit Committee: ‘ ‘ ‘
’ 5.6(a) ‘ Reporting to the Board of Directors: ‘ ‘ ‘
’ 5.6(a)i) ‘ The Audit Committee shall report on its activities to the Board. ‘ ‘ ‘
5.6(a)ii) | The Audit Committee shall immediately report to the Board of Directors on the
following findings, if any:-
5.6(a)(ii) | report on conflicts of interests; re;;rohr‘taa:&gizsn;of
a) conflict of interest
for the year ended
30th June, 2018
5.6(a)(ii) | suspected or presumed fraud or irregularity or material defect identified in the h’;‘g:ﬁggnrzal}ﬁg
b) internal audit and compliance process or in the financial statements; the year.
5.6(a)(ii)| suspected infringement of laws, regulatory compliances including securities related laws, h’;‘g :ﬁggn”gal}';ﬁ:g
c) rules and regulations; and the year.
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5.6(a)(ii)| any other matter which the Audit Committee deems necessary shall be disclosed to the v Do
d) Board immediately;
5.6(b) Reporting to the Authorities:
If the Audit Committee has reported to the Board about anything which has material
impact on the financial condition and results of operation and has discussed with the Not Aoplicabl
Board and the management that any rectification is necessary and if the Audit Ctappikabie
Committee finds that such rectification has been unreasonably ignored, the Audit
Committee shall report such finding to the Commission, upon reporting of such matters
to the Board for three times or completion of a period of 6 (six) months from the date of
first reporting to the Board, whichever is earlier.
; . The Audit
57 Reporting to the Shareholders and General Investors: Committee Report
Report on activities carried out by the Audit Committee, including any report made is disclosed in the
to the Board under condition No. 5(6)(a)(ii) above during the year, shall be signed 7 a“;}gﬁggeg;’ﬁ‘hae”d
by the Chairperson of the Audit Committee and disclosed in the annual report of Chairman of the
. said Committee
the issuer company.
’ 6 ‘ Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC).- ‘ ‘ ‘
’ 6.1 ‘ Responsibility to the Board of Directors ‘ ‘ ‘
6.1(a) The company shall have a Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) as a v NRC was formed on
sub-committee of the Board and all requirements
shall be complied
with subsequent to
the formation of the
NRC.
6.1(b) The NRC shall assist the Board in formulation of the nomination criteria or policy
for determining qualifications, positive attributes, experiences and independence Do
of directors and top level executive as well as a policy for formal process of
considering remuneration of directors, top level executive;
6.1(c) The Terms of Reference (ToR) of the NRC shall be clearly set forth in writing 20
covering the areas stated at the condition No. 6(5)(b).
62 | Constitution of the NRC \ \
; ; ; ; NRC was formed
6.2(a) The Committee shall comprise of at least three members including an on 10 Movormbor
independent director; 2018 and all
4 requirements shall
be complied with
subsequent to the
formation of the
NRC.
’ 6.2(b) ‘ All members of the Committee shall be non-executive directors; v ‘ ‘ Do ‘
’ 6.2(c) ‘ Members of the Committee shall be nominated and appointed by the Board; v ‘ ‘ Do ‘
6.2(d) The Board shall have authority to remove and appoint any member of the v e
Committee;
6.2(e) In case of death, resignation, disqualification, or removal of any member of the N/A
Committee or in any other cases of vacancies, the board shall fill the vacancy
within 180 (one hundred eighty) days of occurring such vacancy in the
Committee;
6.2(f) The Chairperson of the Committee may appoint or co-opt any external expert N/A
and/or member(s) of staff to the Committee as advisor who shall be non-voting
member, if the Chairperson feels that advice or suggestion from such external
expert and/or member(s) of staff shall be required or valuable for the Committee;
’ 6.2(g) ‘ The company secretary shall act as the secretary of the Committee; v ‘ ‘
6.2(h) The quorum of the NRC meeting shall not constitute without attendance of at least N/A
an independent director;
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6.2(i) No member of the NRC shall receive, either directly or indirectly, any 'gﬁ?owﬁgvfgmgzﬁr’
remuneration for any advisory or consultancy role or otherwise, other than 2018 and all
Director’s fees or honorarium from the company. fggucigeg‘p?ir:g ;’i‘tﬂ"
subsequent to the
formation of the
NRC.
’ 6.3 ‘ Chairperson of the NRC ‘ ‘ ‘
6.3(a) The Board shall select 1 (one) member of the NRC to be Chairperson of the Committee, v Do
who shall be an independent director;
6.3(b) In the absence of the Chairperson of the NRC, the remaining members may elect one of v Do
themselves as Chairperson for that particular meeting, the reason of absence of the
regular Chairperson shall be duly recorded in the minutes;
6.3(c) The Chairperson of the NRC shall attend the annual general meeting (AGM) to answer Do
the queries of the shareholders: Provided that in absence of Chairperson of the NRC,
any other member from the NRC shall be selected to be present in the annual general
meeting (AGM) for answering the shareholder’s queries and reason for absence of the
Chairperson of the NRC shall be recorded in the minutes of the AGM.
] 6.4 \ Meeting of the NRC ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘
’ 6,4(a) ‘ The NRC shall conduct at least one meeting in a financial year ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘
6,4(b) The Chairperson of the NRC may convene any emergency meeting upon request by any
member of the NRC
6,4(c) The quorum of the meeting of the NRC shall be constituted in presence of either two Do
members or two third of the members of the Committee, whichever is higher, where
presence of an independent director is must as required under condition No. 6(2)(h)
6,4(d) The proceedings of each meeting of the NRC shall duly be recorded in the minutes and Do
such minutes shall be confirmed in the next meeting of the NRC.
| 65 | Roleof the NRC \ \ \
6.5(a) NRC shall be independent and responsible or accountable to the Board and to the Do
shareholders;
6.5(b) NRC shall oversee, among others, the following matters and make report with Do
recommendation to the Board:
6.5(b)(i) | formulating the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and Do
independence of a director and recommend a policy to the Board, relating to the
remuneration of the directors, top level executive, considering the following:
6.5(b)(i) | the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain Do
(a) and motivate suitable directors to run the company successfully;
6.5(b)(i) | the relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate Do
(b) performance benchmarks; and
6.5(b)(i) | remuneration to directors, top level executive involves a balance between fixed and Do
(c) incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance objectives appropriate to the
working of the company and its goals;
6.5(b)(ii)| devising a policy on Board's diversity taking into consideration age, gender, experience, Do
ethnicity, educational background and nationality;
6.5(b)(iii) identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in Do
top level executive position in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend
their appointment and removal to the Board,;
6.5(b)(iv)| formulating the criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors and the Do
Board;
Do

6.5(b)(v)| identifying the company's needs for employees at different levels and determine their
selection, transfer or replacement and promotion criteria; and
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Condition Compliance status
No. Title Compiea | ,ﬂ ;;ied Remarks (if any)
6.5(b)(vi) developing, recommending and reviewing annually the company’s human resources and Do
training policies;
6.5(c) The company shall disclose the nomination and remuneration policy and the evaluation Do
criteria and activities of NRC during the year at a glance in its annual report.

7 EXTERNAL/STATUTORY AUDITORS:

The issuer company shall not engage its external or statutory auditors to perform the
following services of the company, namely:-

7.1(i) appraisal or valuation services or fairness opinions , Lhu%%ft#;‘\’g
declared their
compliances.

’ 7.1(ii) ‘ financial information systems design and implementation; ‘ v ‘ ‘ Do ‘
’ 7.1(iii) ‘ book-keeping or other services related to the accounting records or financial statements; ‘ v ‘ ‘ Do ‘
’ 7.1(iv) ‘ broker-dealer services; ‘ v ‘ ‘ Do ‘
’ 7.1(v) ‘ actuarial services; ‘ 4 ‘ ‘ Do ‘
’ 7.1(vi) ‘ internal audit services or special audit services; ‘ v ‘ ‘ Do ‘
’ 7.1(vii) ‘ any service that the Audit Committee determines; ‘ 4 ‘ ‘ Do ‘
7.1(viii) audit or certification services on compliance of corporate governance as required under v Do
condition No. 9(1); and
| 7.1(x) | any other service that creates conflict of interest. | 7 ] \ 20 ‘
7.2 No partner or employees of the external audit firms shall possess any share of the Do
company they audit at least during the tenure of their audit assignment of that company;
his or her family members also shall not hold any shares in the said company:
Provided that spouse, son, daughter, father, mother, brother, sister, son-in-law and
daughter-in-law shall be considered as family members.
7.3 Representative of external or statutory auditors shall remain present in the Shareholders’ v Do
Meeting (Annual General Meeting or Extraordinary General Meeting) to answer the
queries of the shareholders.
’ 8 \ Maintaining a website by the Company ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘
8.1 The company shall have an official website linked with the website of the stock 4
exchange.
’ 8.2 ‘ The company shall keep the website functional from the date of listing. ‘ v ‘ ‘ ‘

8.3 The company shall make available the detailed disclosures on its website as required v

under the listing regulations of the concerned stock exchange(s).
9 Reporting and Compliance of Corporate Governance.
9.1 The company shall obtain a certificate from a practicing Professional Accountant or
Secretary (Chartered Accountant or Cost and Management Accountant or Chartered
Secretary) other than its statutory auditors or audit firm on yearly basis regarding
compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance Code of the Commission and shall v
such certificate shall be disclosed in the Annual Report. Explanation: “Chartered
Accountant” means Chartered Accountant as defined in the Bangladesh Chartered
Accountants Order, 1973 (President's Order No. 2 of 1973); “Cost and Management
Accountant” means Cost and Management Accountant as defined in the Cost and
Management Accountants Ordinance, 1977 (Ordinance No. LIl of 1977); “Chartered
Secretary” means Chartered Secretary as defined in the Chartered Secretaries Act, 2010.
9.2 The professional who will provide the certificate on compliance of this Corporate fro"n‘ﬁ"ngitegjfs‘h’ﬁng
Governance Code shall be appointed by the shareholders in the annual general meeting. AGM
9.3 The directors of the company shall state, in accordance with the Annexure-C attached, in v
the directors’ report whether the company has complied with these conditions or not.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS Annexure- D

ON COMPANY'S POSITION AND OPERATION

The financial and operating performance of Padma Oil Company Ltd. during the year 2017-
2018 has been remarkable. The Company experienced decent growth in sales of fuel oil and
profitability during 2017-18 fiscal year. We are focusing on the sustainability and
efficiency. The overall company's position has been reflected in the Financial Statements
which have been prepared and presented in accordance with all generally accepted
accounting principles. The overall company's position and future planning, methods of
preparation of financial statements have been summarized below:

Preparation of Financial Statements

These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis following accrual
basis of accounting except for Cash Flow Statement in compliance with Bangladesh
Financial Reporting Standards (BFRS).

Accounting Policies and Estimates:

The details of accounting policies and estimates applied for the preparation of Financial
Statements are described in note no.02 of audited financial statements. There are no changes
in accounting policies and estimates for the fiscal year 2017-2018.

Comparative Analysis of Financial Performance

Key financial data of immediate preceding five years is shown detailed in Annexure-3 of the

Directors Report. For comparison, financial results and financial position of the Company

for the financial year 2017-18 with immediate preceding five years are given below:
Amount in Crore Taka

Financial & 2017-18 2016-17 2015-16 | 2014-15 2013-14 2012-13
Operational results

Sales (MT in Lac) 23.66 20.08 17.83 17.89 18.29 16.88
Net earnings on 301.32 244.59 186.91 180.97 183.83 150.33
petroleum products

Profit aftertax 335.80 203.13 187.3 6 192. 80 212.73 206.70
EPS (Taka) 34.18 20.68 19.07 19.63 21.66 21.04
Net Asset Value 126.78 103.60 92.92 83.85 74.22 60.75
per share (Taka)

Net operating cash (36.37) 116.42 80.22 (87.90) 39.16 (47.90)
flow per share (Taka)

Financial Performance of Peer Industry

There are three major oil marketing companies in the industry including Padma Oil
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Company Limited. Rest of two companies' financial and operational data are summarized

below:

Meghna Petroleum Limited: Amount in Crore Taka

Financial & 2017-18 2016-17 2015-16 | 2014-15 2013-14 2012-13
Operational results

Sales (MT in Lac) 24.71 20.78 17.95 18.09 19.49 18.44
Net earnings on 240.93 213.25 139.64 163.54 148.80 135.57
petroleum products

Profit after tax 360.41 219.48 185.02 203.48 235.98 186.44
EPS (Taka) 33.30 20.28 17.10 18.80 21.81 18.95
Net Asset Value 113.20 90.89 81.57 74.51 64.35 52.63
per share (Taka)

Net operating cash 111.77 54.39 108.41 28.98 29.39 38.54
flow per share (Taka)

Jamuna Oil Company Limited:
Amount in Crore Taka

Financial & 2017-18 2016-17 2015-16 2014-15 2013-14 2012-13
Operational results

Sales (MT in Lac) 18.34 16.68 16.06 16.34 16.41 15.51
Net earnings on 134.10 124.15 87.20 173.30 147.12 140.36
petroleum products

Profit after tax 281.07 224.26 195.90 225.32 231.68 199.01
EPS(Taka) 25.45 20.31 17.74 20.40 20.98 19.82
Net Asset Value per 170.34 166.98 143.44 136.74 118.53 110.73
share (Taka)

Net operating cash (51.23) (24.55) 130.87 67.48 76.31 7.85
flow per share (Taka)

Global and Local Economic Scenario:

The economy of Bangladesh progressed well in FY 2017-18. The global economy grew by
about 3.74% as compared to the previous year. The Bangladesh economy has been able to
maintain sustainable economic growth. The economy grew at a rate of 7.86 percent in FY
2017-18, satisfactory up from 7.28 percent growth in FY 2016-17. Government of
Bangladesh has visionary target to build a durable and sustainable energy, power and
transportation infrastructure in order to become a prosperous nation.

Risk and Mitigation:

Risk Factors of Petroleum Sector:

The economy of Bangladesh is growing faster and it creates an opportunity for the entire oil
industry and power sector. There are some challenges in business of petroleum products
such as market competition with private sector, open market economy, fluctuations of price
of imported petroleum products etc.
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Risk Factors of Agrochemical Sector:

More than 380 companies including some giant multinationals are heading to grab the market
of agrochemicals. There is a stiff competition in the agrochemical market. Besides, Bangladesh
is among the most vulnerable countries to climate change, which poses a long-term threat to
the country's agricultural sector, particularly in areas affected by flooding, saline intrusion, and
drought. Price factors of our quality products are very much concern for us.

Mitigation Policy:

The Govt. of Bangladesh is emphasizing of enacting favorable rules and policy to attract the
investors. We are monitoring to identify and assess the potential challenges and to find the
way out to mitigate those challenges. The Board of Directors of POCL formed a Board
committee to evaluate the Company's current position of agrochemicals trading and thereby
taking corrective measures to increase the sales of agrochemical products. The Committee
has already submitted their report and their recommendations of the report are being
implemented. The management of the Company is regularly monitoring the inherent
business risk and taking corrective measures.

Future Planning:

A big budgetary development program has been undertaken for business expansion and
smooth supply of fuel to the public by establishing new depots, storage tanks and other
physical infrastructures. A project of automation has been undertaken to modernize
operational activities at the Company's Main Installation. The operational activities in
various depots will also be modernized in phases. The Company's future plan is also
acquisition and implementation of financing profitable projects in unused land at different
places of the Company's owned land. The Company also has taken plan to establish riverine
depots at Bhairab Bazar and Barishal replacing existing barge depots for increasing its
current level sale of fuel oil and agrochemicals products and to increase its fuel oil storage
capacity according to the demand. In order to increase the sales of agrochemical products,
the Company has taken plan to modernize its agrochemical plant situated in Main
Installation and to include quality products in the portfolio of the Company's agrochemical
products. The Company is also adhering to improve its performance through specialization,
differentiation, segmentation and overall diversification. We are hopeful that we shall
achieve our projected target and march forward in the years to come.

——
(Md. Masudur Rahman)
Managing Director
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48" Annual General Meeting

The 48th Annual General Meeting (AGM) of Padma Oil Company Limited was
held at 'Hall 24', CRB Road (West side of M.A Aziz Stadium) Chattogram on 17
February 2018 at 11-00 am. Board Chairman Nazimuddin Chowdhury presided
over the Meeting. Directors of Board ARM Nazmus Sakib, Md. Sayed Mozammel
Haque, Ahmed Jamal Khan Choudhuri, Mohammed Abdul Awwal, Arifuzzaman
Miah Tutul, Managing Director Md. Masudur Rahman, Company Secretary
Mohiuddin Ahmed and BPC and Company's senior officials attended at the
Meeting.

After recitation of verse from the Holy Quran the Chairman welcomed the
shareholders in the Annual General Meeting. The meeting started with the
Chairman's inviting comments on proceedings of last Annual General Meeting
followed by comments on Directors' Report and audited financial statements for
the year ended 30 June, 2017. The shareholders unanimously approved the audited
financial statements and proposed 110% cash dividends for the year ended 30 June
2017. Proposal for appointment of external auditors M/s. Rahman Rahman Huq &
Co. and M/s. Shafiq Basak & Co. Chartered Accountants for the year 2017-2018
was approved by the shareholders.

A huge number of Honourable Shareholders actively participated in the discussion
and they talked about the overall performance of the Company in the AGM.
Chairman of the Board Nazimuddin Chowdhury and Managing Director Md.
Masuder Rahman replied to the queries and explained on various comments made
by distinguished shareholders.

Shareholders appreciated the Company's overall performance during the meeting.
The meeting ended with a vote of thanks to the chair.
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Photographs of 48th AGM
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Contribution & Value Additions
For The Year Ended 30 June 2018
Particulars Taka In '000
30-Jun-18 % 30-Jun-17 %
Earnings on
Petroleum Products 3,013,155 2,445,923
Agro-chemicals trading (21,878) 3,334
2,991,277 2,449,257
Other Income 3,988,914 2,373,014
Total value added 6,980,191 4,822,271
Distribution of added value
To Government as revenue & taxes 878,857 12.59 735,194 15.24
To Employees & others cost 1,048,739 15.03 1,600,873 33.20
To Financial expenses 220,370 3.16 180,426 3.74
To shareholders 1,277,025 18.29 1,080,560 22.41
To depreciation & retained earnings 3,955,200  50.93 1,225,218  25.41
6,980,191 100.00 4,822,271 100.00
® 2018 ® 2017
56.00
49.00
42.00
35.00
g\c’_ 28.00
()
ap 21.00
(4]
afd
c 14.00
Q
© 700
(]
Q- 000

Financial Shareholders

expenses

Government
revenue & Taxes

Employees &
others Cost

Depreciation &
retained Profit
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Report of the Audil Commiltee

Audit Committee of Padma Oil Company Limited was formed by the Board of Directors of the
Company in accordance with the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission's Notification
No-SEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated 3 June 2018.

The Audit Committee of Padma Oil Company is comprised of three members of the Board of
Directors and Company Secretary.

The composition of present Audit Committee is as under;

Mr. Mohammad Igbal : Chairman
Mr. Dr. Mohd. Sher Ali . Member
Mr. Md. Altaf Hussain Chaudhury . Member
Mr. Sohel Abdullah . Secretary

Terms of Reference

The purpose of the Audit Committee is to ensure and to improve the adequacy of internal control
system and provides the update information to the Board of Directors. The Committee is
empowered to examine the matter relating to the financial and other affairs of the Company.The
terms of reference of the Audit Committee cover all matters specified under Clause-5(5) of the
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission’'s Notification dated 3 June 2018.

Number of Meeting
The Committee formally met four times during the period from July 2017 to June 2018.

Role of the Committee

¢ Overseeing the Company's financial reporting process and disclosure of financial
information to ensure that the financial statements are correct, sufficient and credible ;

¢ Reviewing with the management regarding the annual financial statements before
submission to the Board;

*> Reviewing with the management regarding the quarterly and half yearly financial
statements before submission to the Board.

- Reviewing with the management and statutory and internal auditors, the adequacy of
internal control system;

= Discussing with internal auditors regarding any significant findings and follow-up such
issues;

=¢ Discussing with statutory auditors, before the audit commence, on the nature and scope of
audit, as well as having post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern;

*¢ Reviewing the Company's financial and risk management policies.

** Reviewing Management Letters issued by statutory audiotrs.

Activities carried out by the Audit Committee :

The committee reviewed and discussed the financial reports preparation and the external audit
report during FY 2017-2018. The committee found adequate arrangement to present a free and
fair view of the activities and the financial status of the company and did not find any material
deviation, discrepancies or any adverse finding/observation in the areas of reporting.

(Mohammad Igbal)
Chairman, POCL Audit Committee
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Independent auditors' report to the shareholders of
Padma Oil Company Limited

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Padma Oil Company Limited ("the company"),
which comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2018, and the statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards, the Companies Act
1994, the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987 and other applicable laws and regulations and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Bangladesh Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of Padma Oil

Company Limited as at 30 June 2018 and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards.

Other matter

The financial statements of Padma Oil Company Limited for the year ended 30 June 2017 were audited by
A. Qasem & Co., Chartered Accountants and Shafiq Basak & Co., Chartered Accountants who expressed
an unmodified opinion on those financial statements on 07 November 2017.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
In accordance with the Companies Act 1994 and the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987, we also report
the following:

a) we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit and made due verification thereof;

b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the company so far as
it appeared from our examination of those books;

c) the statement of financial position and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income dealt with by the report are in agreement with the books of account and returns; and

d) the expenditure incurred was for the purpose of the Company's business.

Bocaicgs

Chattogram Shafiq Basak & Co. Rahman Rahman Huq
10 November 2018 Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
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Padma Oil Company Limited
Statement of Financial Position
As at June 2018
Taka in' 000
As at 30 June
Note 2018 2017

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 4 1,593,374 1,495,481
Capital work-in-progress 5 653,943 695,235
Current assets 2,247,317 2,190,716
Short Term Investments (FDRs) 6 4,225,910 3,251,433
Inventories 7 17,266,838 10,987,877
Accounts receivable 8 19,599,875 16,021,443
Due from affiliated companies 9 95,142,445 79,393,974
Advances, deposits and pre-payments 10 181,546 176,338
Cash and cash equivalents 11 31,166,298 33,909,578

167,582,912 143,740,643
TOTAL ASSETS 169,830,229 145,931,359
Shareholders' equity
Share capital 12 982,327 982,327
Retained earnings 11,471,939 9,194,487
Total equity 12,454,266 10,176,814
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities:
Deferred tax liabilities 20 192,255 188,031
Long Term Loan 21 183,463 183,463

375,718 371,494

Current liabilities
Accounts payable 13 35,445,971 37,869,102
Supplies and expenses payable 14 11,333,126 11,060,120
Due to affiliated companies 15 106,418,380 83,400,815
Other liabilities 16 3,289,232 2,772,847
Dividend payable 17 132,867 138,592
Income tax payable 18 380,669 141,575

157,000,245 135,383,051
Total Liabilities 157,375,963 135,754,545
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 169,830,229 145,931,359
Net Asset Value ( NAV ) per share 38 Tk. 126.78 Tk. 103.60

Annexed notes from 1 to 44 form integral part of these financial statements.

Mohiuddin Ahmed
Company Secretary

1\

Md. Masudur Rahman
CEO & Managing Director

Dr. Mohd. Sher Ali
Director

Mohammad Igbal
Director

As per our annexed report of Same date

Bocare

Shafiq Basak & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Chattogram
10 November 2018

Rahman Rahman Huq
Chartered Accountants
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Padma Oil Company Limited
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 30 June 2018

Taka in' 000
Year ended 30 June
Note 2018 2017
Gross earnings on Petroleum Products 22 3,006,666 2,457,705
Direct cost on Petroleum Products:
Packing Charges 22.01 (25,080) (23,495)
Handling Charges 22.01 (5,521) (7,193)
(30,601) (30,688)

2,976,065 2,427,017
Net Operational (Loss)/Gain 28.01 37,090 18,906
Net earnings on petroleum products 3,013,155 2,445,923
Operating expenses:
Administrative, selling and distribution expenses 23 (2,043,835) (1,790,211)
Financial expenses 24 (220,370) (180,426)

(2,264,205) (1,970,637)
Operating Profit on Petroleum 748,950 475,286
Other operating income -petroleum trade 25 762,584 588,453
Operating (loss)/profit on Agro-chemical trading 26 (21,878) 3,334

740,706 591,787

Total Operating Profit 1,489,656 1,067,073
Non-operating Income 27 3,226,330 1,784,561
Profit before WPPF 4,715,986 2,851,634
Contribution to Workers' Profits Participation and Welfare Fund (235,799) (142,582)
Net Profit before income tax 4,480,187 2,709,052
Provision for Income tax:
Current tax 18 (1,117,951) (665,503)
Deferred tax 20 (4,224) (12,298)

(1,122,175) (677,801)
Net Profit after tax 3,358,012 2,031,251
Other comprehensive income - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 3,358,012 2,031,251
Earnings per share (EPS - basic) 29 Tk. 34.18 Tk. 20.68

Annexed notes from 1 to 44 form integral part of these financial statements.

«@% — 1
Mohiuddin Ahmed Md. Masudur Rahman

Company Secretary CEO & Managing Director Director

Dr. Mohd. Sher Ali

Mohammad Igbal

Director

As per our annexed report of Same date

Bocargs

Shafiq Basak & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Chattogram
10 November 2018

=3

Rahman Rahman Huq
Chartered Accountants
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Padma Oil Company Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 30 June 2018
Taka' 000
Particulars Share Capital Retained Total equity
earnings

Balance as on 01 July 2016

Cash dividend declared for the year 2015-2016

Total comprehensive income for the year

Balance as at 30 June 2017

Balance as on 01 July 2017

Cash dividend declared for the year 2016-2017

Total comprehensive income for the year

Balance as at 30 June 2018

982,327 8,145,563 9,127,890
- (982,327) (982,327)
- 2,031,251 2,031,251
982,327 9,194,487 10,176,814
982,327 9,194,487 10,176,814
- (1,080,560)  (1,080,560)
- 3,358,012 3,358,012
982,327 11,471,939 12,454,266

Annexed notes from 1 to 44 form integral part of these financial statements.

e (T Y
Md. Masudur Rahman
CEO & Managing Director

Mohiuddin Ahmed
Company Secretary

Dr. Mohd. Sher Ali
Director

Mohammad Igbal
Director
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Padma Oil Company Limited
Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 30 June 2018
Taka in' 000
Year ended 30 June
2018 2017
A. Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Receipts from customers and others 160,001,050 129,308,937
Paid to suppliers against petroleum and agro products and others (162,694,955) (117,138,671)
Income tax paid (878,857) (735,194)
Net cash (used)/generated from Operating Activities (3,572,762) 11,435,072
B. Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Capital Expenditures (253,888) (328,275)
Investment in FDRs (974,477) 3,545,648
Interest received from FDR/SND 3,143,973 1,889,900
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 159 439
Net cash generated from Investing Activities 1,915,767 5,107,713
C. Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Dividend paid (1,086,285)| | (946,473)|
Net cash used in Financing Activities (1,086,285) (946,473)
Total (A+B+C) (2,743,280) 15,596,312
Opening cash and cash equivalents 33,909,578 18,313,266
Closing cash and cash equivalents 31,166,298 33,909,578
(2,743,280) 15,596,312
Operating Cash (Outflow)/Inflow per share (note - 39) Tk. (36.37) Tk. 116.42
Annexed notes from 1 to 44 form integral part of these financial statements.
e (T Y
Mohiuddin Ahmed  Md. Masudur Rahman Dr. Mohd. Sher Ali Mohammad Igbal

Company Secretary CEO & Managing Director
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Padma Oil Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
As at and for the year ended 30 June 2018
1.00 Legal Form of the entity

1.01

2.00
2.01

2.02

2.03

2.04

2.05

Padma Oil Company Limited (The 'company') was incorporated as a Public Limited
Company on 27 April 1965 under the name and style of Burmah Eastern Limited having its
registered office at Chattogram. In 1977, Burmah Eastern Limited became a subsidiary of
Bangladesh Petroleum Corporation (BPC). The name of the company was changed to
Padma Oil Company Limited (POCL) with effect from 3rd September 1988 and its shares are
listed with both the Chittagong Stock Exchange (CSE) Limited and Dhaka Stock Exchange
(DSE) Limited.

Nature of the business
The principal activities of the Company are procurement, storage and marketing of
Petroleum products, Lubricants, Greases, Bitumen and LPG.

In addition, the Company manufactures Agro Chemicals products (Furadan) in its Granular
Pesticides Formulation plant and markets Furadan together with certain other imported
Agro-Chemicals products.

Basis of preparation, presentation & disclosures of financial statements

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis following accrual
basis of accounting except for cash flow statement in compliance with Bangladesh Financial
Reporting Standards (BFRSSs).

Other regulatory compliances

The Company is also required to comply with the following major laws and regulations along
with the Companies Act 1994

i) The Income Tax Ordinance, 1984

i) The Income Tax Rules, 1984

iii)The Value Added Tax Act, 1991

iv) The Value Added Tax Rules, 1991

v) The Customs Act 1969

vi) Bangladesh Labour Law 2006

vii) The Securities and Exchange Ordinance, 1969

viii) The Securities and Exchange Rules, 1987

ix) Securities and Exchange Commission Act, 1993, etc.

Basis of measurement

The elements of Financial Statements have been measured on "Historical Cost " convention
in a going concern concept and on accrual basis.

Going concern

The company has adequate resources and intention to continue its operation as going
concern for the foreseeable future. For this reason the directors continue to adopt going
concern basis in preparing the Financial Statements.

The current revenue generations and resources of the company provide sufficient fund to
meet the present requirements of its existing business and operation.

Comparative Information

Comparative information has been disclosed in respect of the preceding year in accordance
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with BAS-1: Presentation of Financial Statements, for all numeric information in the financial
statements and also the narrative and scriptive information where it is relevant for
understanding of the current year’s Financial Statements. Prior year’s figures are rearranged
wherever considered necessary to ensure comparability with the current year.

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Bangladeshi Taka which is the Company's
functional currency. All financial information presented in BDT has been rounded off to the
nearest thousand Taka.

Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with BAS and BFRS requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in
any future periods affected.

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical
judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognized in the financial statements is included in the following notes:

Note 4: Property, plant and equipment

Note 7: Inventories
Note 8: Accounts receivable
Note 18: Income tax payable/(receivable)

Note 20: Deferred tax liabilities
Note 36 Contingent liabilities
Reporting period

These financial statements of the company cover one year from 01 July 2017 to 30 June
2018 and is followed consistently.

Authorization for issue

These financial statements have been authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on
10 November 2018.

Significant accounting policies

The specific accounting policies selected and applied by the Company’s management for
significant transactions and events that have material effect within the framework of BAS-1
“Presentation of Financial Statements”, in preparation and presentation of financial
statements. The previous year's figures were presented in according to the same Accounting
Principles. The company classified the expenses using the function of expenses method as
per BAS-1.

Property, plant and equipment
Recognition and measurement

All Property, Plant & Equipments except Freehold Land are initially accounted for at cost
and depreciated over their expected useful lives in accordance with BAS-16.

Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the assets. The
cost of self constructed /installed assets includes the cost of materials and direct labour and
any other costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to the working condition for its
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intended use and the cost of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on
which they are located.

On retirement or otherwise disposal of fixed assets, the cost and accumulated depreciation
are eliminated, and any gain or loss on such disposal is reflected in the income statement
which is determined with reference to the net book value of the assets and the net sale
proceeds.

Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the
carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefit embodied within
the part will flow to the company and its cost can be measured reliably. The costs of the day
to day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognized in Statements of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income as incurred.

Depreciation

No depreciation is charged on freehold land and on capital work in progress. Depreciation is
recognized in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on straight line
method over the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment. Depreciation is
charged from the month of addition when the asset is ready for use and no depreciation is
charged from the following month of deletion. The principal annual rates are as follows:

Assets Rates of depreciation (%)
Leasehold Land 3.5

Building 2.5-10

Plant and Machinery 7.5-10

Vehicle 20

Furniture and Fixture 5

Others facilities 7.5-25

Capital Work-In-Progress

Property, Plant and Equipment under construction/acquisition is accounted for and
measured at cost as capital work-in-progress until construction/acquisition is completed and
it is ready for use.

Financial instruments

A Financial Instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

(i) Non-derivative financial assets

The company initially recognizes accounts and other receivables on the date that they are
originated. Financial assets include accounts and other receivables, advances, deposits and
prepayments, investment in FDR and cash and cash equivalents.

Accounts and other receivables

Accounts and other receivables are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. Such assets are recognized initially at fair value plus any
directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, accounts and other
receivables are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment losses.

Advances, Deposits and Prepayments

Advances are initially measured at cost. After initial recognition, advances are carried at cost
less deductions, adjustments or charges to other account heads such as Property, Plant and
Equipment, Inventory or Expenses.
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Deposits are measured at payment value.

Prepayments are initially measured at cost. After initial recognition, prepayments are carried
at cost less charges to profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, together with
short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash,
and that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

(ii) Non-derivative financial liabilities

Liabilities (including liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss) are recognized
initially on the trade date at which the company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. The company derecognizes a financial liability when its
contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or expire. Financial liabilities includes
liabilities and accounts and other payables.

Accounts and other payables

The company recognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations arising from
past events are certain and the settlement of which is expected to result in an outflow from
the entity of resources embodying economic benefits.

Inventories

Major and minor petroleum products of BPC excluding Lubes and Greases are valued at net
realizable value. Lubes, Greases and Agro-chemical products are valued at lower of cost or
net realizable value. Stocks of stores and spares are valued at weighted average cost.
Statutory charges ( like Custom-duty or VAT ) and freight attributable to Stock-in-trade are
carried forward and added to the value of the stocks. However, cost comprises procurement
cost and attributable overheads to bring the goods to their respective state at which they
were on the reporting date.

Impairment
Property, plant and Equipment

The carrying amount of the company's assets are reviewed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists then
the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying
amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount.

Receivables:

Company policy is to provide for impairment loss on debtors, excepting Government
Organizations. If any receivables are not realized within three years from due date.

Employee benefits

Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given by the entity in exchange for service
rendered by an employee.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are
expensed as the related service is provided.

Post employment benefits

Post-employment benefits are employee benefits which are payable after the completion of
employment. The company maintains both defined contribution plan and defined benefit plan
for its eligible permanent employees.
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3.06

3.07

3.08

3.09

Defined contribution plan

The company has two contributory provident funds for its junior and senior executives which
were recognized on 30 June 1967 under the applicable Income Tax laws and regulations.
Contribution to the fund is made equally by employee and employer @ 10% of basic pay for
eligible permanent employees. The said funds are managed by duly constituted four member
Board of Trustees. Assets of provident fund are held in a separate Trustee Funds as per the
relevant rules and is funded by payments from employees and by the company. The
company's contributions to the provident funds are charged as revenue expenditure in the
period to which the contributions relate.

Defined benefit plan

The company maintains a funded gratuity/pension scheme. Contribution to gratuity/pension
fund for pension and/or gratuity benefits is made at the rate as determined on the basis of
valuation certified by an actuary after every three years.

Workers' Profit Participation Fund

The company also account for provision of Workers' Profit Participation and Welfare funds
(WPP & WF) @ 5% of its profit before charging such expenses as per Labour Act 2006.

Earnings per Share (EPS)

EPS is calculated in accordance with Bangladesh Accounting Standards BAS-33 Earnings
Per Share.

This represents profit for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders. As there is no
preference dividend, minority interest or extra ordinary items, the net profit after tax for the
year has been considered fully attributable to the ordinary shareholders.

Diluted Earning Per Share

No diluted Earnings per share was required to be calculated for the year under review as
there is no scope for dilution of Earnings Per Share for the year.

Statement of Cash Flows

Cash flow statement is prepared in accordance with BAS - 7 under the direct method as
outlined in the Securities & Exchange Rules 1987.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

A provision is recognized in the Statement of Financial Position when the group has a legal
or contractual obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. Contingencies arising from claims, litigations, assessments, fine,
penalties etc. are recorded when it is probable that a liability has been incurred and the
amount can be reasonably estimated. Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial
statements.

Taxation

Current tax:

Income tax expense is recognized in statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income. Current tax is the expected tax payable on the total income for the year using tax
rates enacted or substantially enacted as of reporting date and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years. The company qualifies as a publicly traded company;
hence the applicable tax rate is 25% for the year.
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Deferred tax:

"Deferred tax liabilities are the amount of income taxes payable in the future periods in
respect of taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are the amount of income
taxes recoverable in future periods in respect of deductible temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences of timing differences
arising between the carrying values of assets, liabilities, income and expenditure and their
respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates and
tax laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted at the Statement of Financial
Position date. The impact of changes on the account in the deferred tax assets and liabilities
has also been recognized in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
as per BAS-12 “Income Taxes”.

Revenue

In compliance with the requirements of BAS 18 : Commission earnings from sales of
petroleum products are measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable.
Commission on petroleum products are determined by Government through official Gazette
Notification issued from time to time. Revenue from the sale of agro-chemical products is
measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns, trade
discounts and volume rebates.

Revenue is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyer, recovery of the consideration is probable, the associated costs and
possible return of goods can be estimated reliably, there is no continuing management
involvement with the goods, and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

Other income
Other income - operating

Other income-operating includes land rent, service charges, filling and power station rent,
POL products handling, and interest income on delayed payment. Other operating income
are recognized as revenue income as and when accrued / realized.

Other income - non-operating

Other income-non-operating includes interest income from SND and FDR, profit on disposal
of assets and sale of scrap. Interest from FDR and SND are recognized when accrued while
profit on disposal of assets and sale of scrap are recognized as income when realized.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional information about the company's
position at the date of statement of financial position or those that indicate the going concern
assumption is not appropriate are reflected in the financial statements. Events after the
reporting period that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes when material.
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Taka in' 000
As at 30 June

2018 2017
Capital work in Progress
Opening Balance 695,235 630,635
Add: Addition during the year (Note-5.01) 253,888 328,275

949,123 958,910
Transferred to property, plant and equipment during the year (295,180) (263,675)
(Note - 4.00)
Closing Balance 653,943 695,235
Details of Capital Work In Progress ( Taka in '000)
Particulars Balance as at | Expenditure | Transferred | Balance as at
30-June-2017 incurred to Fixed 30-June-2018
during the year Assets

Building 560,617 179,865 (189,790) 550,692
Plant & Machinery 90,214 81,170 (88,975) 82,409
Vehicles - 4,190 (4,190) -
Furniture & Fixtures - 1,058 (1,058) -
Other Facilities 44,404 (12,395) (11,167) 20,842
2018 Total 695,235 253,888 (295,180) 653,943
2017 Total 630,635 | 328,275 | (263,675)] 695,235
Short Term Investments - Fixed deposit receipts (FDR)
Janata Bank Ltd. 1,831,160 1,084,358
ICB 1,894,750 1,608,635
Agrani Bank Ltd. 500,000 -
BASIC Bank Ltd. - 388,031
First Security Islami Bank Ltd. - 103,248
Ansar VDP Unnayan Bank Ltd. - 67,161
Inventories 4,225,910 3,251,433
A. Stock-In-Trade (Petroleum products)
Major products 15,871,605 9,982,593
Minor products 610,362 342,329
Freight 115,184 82,132
B. Agro-chemical products 16,597,151 10,407,054
Finished products (Note - 26.01) 321,584 181,623
Raw material 72,870 143,283
In transit 14,199 13,363
C. Stores 408,653 338,268
In stock 70,690 68,894
In transit 8,114 8,042

78,804 76,936
D. Packing materials 182,230 | | 165618

182,230 165,618

Total (A+ B + C +D) 17,266,838 10,987,877




ANNUAL REPORT

2017 - 2018
Taka in' 000
As at 30 June
2018 2017
8.00 Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable - Petroleum products 16,711,946 14,015,751
Accounts receivable - Agro-chemical products* 92,719 126,174

16,804,665 14,141,925
Other receivables 2,930,107 2,014,415

19,734,772 16,156,340
Less. Provision for Bad debts against trade account receivable (134,897) (134,897)
(Note - 8.01)

19,599,875 16,021,443

8.01

9.00

10.00

10.01

10.02

Tk. 98,924,000 receivable from Khulna Newspaper Mills against dues and Tk. 35,973,000 receivable
from Bangladesh Air Force, Bangladesh Army and Bangladesh Navy relating to the years 1998-1999 and
1999-2000 were accounted for as doubtful debts in 2008 and 2009 respectively.

*Receivable against Agro-chemical trade is secured by Bank Guarantees/ Sanchaya Patras.

Due from Affiliated Entities / Companies (note:43.04) (note: 34)

Bangladesh Petroleum Corporation (BPC) 92,469,846 76,855,972
Eastern Lubricants Blenders Limited 5,000 5,000
Meghna Petroleum Limited 1,042,240 1,053,774
Jamuna Oil Company Limited 1,625,359 1,479,228
95,142,445 79,393,974
Advances, Deposits and Pre-payments
Advances:
Advance to employees (Note - 10.01) 93,639 87,521
Advance against expenses (Note - 10.02) 40,532 48,710
134,171 136,231
Deposits:
Long term deposits (Note - 10.03) 8,529 3,533
Short term deposits (Note - 10.04) 21,907 15,404
30,436 18,937
Prepayments
Insurance premium 4,363 5,140
Rent, rates and taxes 12,576 16,029
16,939 21,169
181,546 176,338
Advances to employees
Employees' car advances 2,424 3,464
Employees' personal accounts 261 148
Festival advances 35,684 32,977
House building advances 55,270 50,932
93,639 87,521

Advance to employees represents amount of advances recoverable in cash from employees by the company.

Advances against expenses

Employees' travelling expenses 1,221 1,258
Contractors for supplies 12,824 15,494
Advance to carriers 26,487 31,958

40,532 48,710

Advances against expenses represents amount of advances to employees, various parties which will be

adjusted in the subsequent years.
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10.04

11.00

11.01

11.02

11.02.1

Long term deposits

Security deposits against telephone
Security deposits against electricity supply
Sundry security deposits

Security deposits against chemicals

Short term deposits

Court fee Stamps

Deposits against franking machine
Deposits against duty

Cash and Cash Equivalent

Cash in hand (Note - 11.01)

Remittance in transit (Through Pay Order)
Cash at banks (Note - 11.02)

Fixed deposit receipts (Note - 11.03)

Cash in hand
Head office
Depot

Cash at banks

Short notice deposit (SND) (Note - 11.02.1)
Current account (Note - 11.02.2)

Collection account (Note - 11.02.3)
Dividend account (Note - 11.02.4)

Short notice deposit (SND)
AB Bank Ltd.

Agrani Bank Ltd.
Bank Asia Ltd.

Brac Bank Ltd.
Citibank NA

Eastern Bank Ltd.
Janata Bank Ltd.
Mercantile Bank Ltd.
One Bank Ltd.
Prime Bank Ltd.
Pubali Bank Ltd.
Sonali Bank Ltd.
Standard Chartered Bank
NCC Bank Ltd.

NRB Bank Ltd.

The Hongkong and Shanghigh Banking Corporation Ltd.

Trust Bank Ltd.
United Commercial Bank Ltd.

ANNUAL REPORT
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Taka in' 000
As at 30 June
2018 2017
106 106
1,113 449
7,287 2,956
23 23
8,529 3,533
20 10
3 6
21,884 15,388
21,907 15,404
1,184 1,078
1,044,572 1,547,805
24,891,830 31,322,454
5,228,712 1,038,241
31,166,298 33,909,578
908 698
276 380
1,184 1,078
24,986,868 31,472,755
(108,494) (205,138)
6,824 26,381
6,632 28,456
24,891,830 31,322,454
2,036,601 981,154
180,001 137,887
20,159 113,818
229,643 1,551,281
116,388 94,435
4,460,843 3,812,231
707,474 550,583
4,739,933 7,428,330
4,118,440 4,935,230
103,104 85,867
278,102 581,724
179,888 200,621
498,362 1,466,252
5,130,431 7,070,529
980,639 1,089,700
718,473 835,333
1,527 27,448
486,860 510,332
24,986,868 31,472,755
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11.02.2

11.02.3

11.02.4

11.03

Current account :

One Bank Ltd.

Janata Bank Ltd.

Sonali Bank Ltd.
Mercantile Bank Ltd.
Standard Chartered Bank
Trust Bank Ltd.

Agrani Bank Ltd.

* Figures in the bracket represent Book Overdraft.

Collection account:

Janata Bank Ltd.
Agrani Bank Ltd.
United Commercial Bank Ltd.

Dividend account:
Standard Chartered Bank

Fixed deposit receipts ( FDR)

EXIM Bank Ltd.
Bangladesh Commerce Bank Ltd.
Rupali Bank Ltd.

Agrani Bank Ltd.
Mercantile Bank Ltd.

AB Bank Ltd.

Southeast Bank Ltd.

NRB Commercial Bank Ltd.
Social Islami Bank Ltd.
Shahjalal Islami Bank Ltd.
IFIC Bank Ltd.

National Credit & Commerce Bank Ltd.

Al Arafa Islami Bank Ltd.
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.
Union Bank Ltd.

NRB Global Bank Ltd.

Taka in' 000
As at 30 June
2018 2017
61,968 54,950
(206,508) 185,122
(1,209) (30,340)
1,667 2,110
35,541 (417,554)
47 -
- 574
(108,494) (205,138)
6,824 22,539
. 189
- 3,653
6,824 26,381
6,632 | | 28,456 |
6,632 28,456
1,054,083 106,156
152,734 104,495
200,000 -
200,000 -
205,947 -
727,173 -
728,025 -
207,364 -
419,889 -
105,355 -
711,522 .
516,620 -
- 104,488
- 208,060
- 206,548
- 308,494
5,228,712 1,038,241
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Taka in' 000
As at 30 June
2018 2017

12.00 Share Capital
No. of Shares

Authorized capital:

100,000,000 Ordinary Shares of Tk. 10 each 1,000,000 1,000,000

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up capital:

1,275,000 1,275,000 Ordinary shares of Tk. 10 each fully paid up in cash. 12,750 12,750
1,225,000 1,225,000 Ordinary shares of Tk. 10 each fully issued as fully paid- 12,250 12,250
up bonus shares for consideration other than cash.
1,000,000 Ordinary shares of Tk. 10 each issued as fully paid-up bonus (stock 10,000 10,000
dividend) shares in the ratio of 2 share for every 5 shares held.
1,400,000 Ordinary shares of Tk. 10 each issued as fully paid-up bonus (stock 14,000 14,000
dividend) shares in the ratio of 2 share for every 5 shares held.
4,900,000 Ordinary shares of Tk. 10 each issued as fully paid-up bonus (stock dividend) 49,000 49,000
shares in the ratio of 1 share for every 1 share held on 31 January 2009.
19,600,000 Ordinary shares of Tk. 10 each issued as fully paid-up bonus (stock dividend) 196,000 196,000
shares in the ratio of 2 share for every 1 share held on 06 February 2010.
14,700,000 Ordinary shares of Tk. 10 each issued as fully paid-up bonus (stock dividend) 147,000 147,000
shares in the ratio of 1 share for every 2 share held on 12 May 2012.
22,050,000 Ordinary shares of Tk. 10 each issued as fully paid-up bonus (stock 220,500 220,500
dividend) shares in the ratio of 1 share for every 2 share held on 28
June 2012.
23,152,500 Ordinary shares of Tk. 10 each issued as fully paid-up bonus (35% 231,525 231,525
stock dividend) held on 16 February 2013.
8,930,250 Ordinary shares of Tk.10 each issued as fully paid-up bonus (10% 89,302 89,302
stock dividend) held on 15 February 2014.
98,232,750 982,327 982,327

12.01 Classification of shares by holding

Class by number of shares No. of Holders | No. of Shares Holding %

Less than 500 7,463 1,236,939 1.26
From 500 to 5,000 3,123 4,770,073 4.86
From 5,001 to 10,000 219 1,567,826 1.60
From 10,001 to 20,000 118 1,661,143 1.69
From 20,001 to 30,000 36 921,201 0.94
From 30,001 to 40,000 20 712,440 0.73
From 40,001 to 50,000 9 427,386 0.44
From 50,001 to 100,000 24 1,870,068 1.90
From 100,001 to 1000,000 42 10,423,569 10.61
From 1,000,001 and above 9 74,642,105 75.98
Total 11,063 98,232,750 100.00

12.02 Composition of Shareholders

As at 30 June 2018 As at 30 June 2017
No. of Shares || Holding% | No. of Shares | | Holding %

Name of shareholders

Bangladesh Petroleum Corporation (BPC) 49,455,662 50.35 49,455,662 50.35
Public and Private Institutions 24,739,778 25.18 26,018,610 26.49
Investment Corporation of Bangladesh (ICB) 8,305,826 8.46 5,498,091 5.60
Foreign Investors 2,430,553 2.47 1,823,593 1.86
Individuals (Bangladeshi) 13,300,931 13.54 15,436,794 15.71

Total 98,232,750 100.00 98,232,750 100.00
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13.00

14.00

15.00

16.00

16.01

Accounts payable
Other supplies

Other charges

Supplies and expenses payable
Revenue charges

Duty, rates and taxes

Royalty

Employees' remuneration

Due to affiliated entities / companies
Bangladesh Petroleum Corporation (BPC)

Jamuna Oil Company Limited
Eastern Lubricants Blenders Limited
Liquified Petroleum Gas Limited

Other Liabilities
Advance against sales from Customers and Agent

Employees' pension fund (Note - 16.01)
Employees' fund-others

Security deposits

Tax deducted at source

Employees' personal accounts *

Liabilities for Capital Expenditure

Workers' Profit Participation and Welfare Funds
Others

* Amounts due to Managers and Officers of the company.

Employees' Pension Fund
Opening balance

Provision made during the year according to actuarial valuation

Payment to pension fund made during the year
Closing balance

Taka in' 000
As at 30 June
2018 2017
35,137,889 37,571,528
308,082 297,574
35,445,971 37,869,102
11,201,216 10,907,070
59,997 71,610
71,122 71,122
791 10,318
11,333,126 11,060,120
106,202,134 83,117,062
127,959 171,622
71,335 94,182
16,952 17,949
106,418,380 83,400,815
1,988,660 1,693,304
172,388 75,432
44,848 48,591
156,160 151,081
89 1,043
35,843 31,970
40,007 31,884
242,839 149,622
608,398 589,920
3,289,232 2,772,847
75,432 31,509
514,869 202,953
590,302 234,461
(417,913) (159,029)
172,388 75,432

Actuarial valuation of the Pension Fund was conducted as on 30 June 2016 and the report was issued on
24 January 2018. Past Service Deficits in the funds were estimated at Tk. 937,423,000 for Senior Staff and
Tk. 1,112,953,000 for Junior Staff as on 30 June 2016. To meet the past service deficit, the valuer
recommended to pay Tk.450 million each year over the next five years and contribution of 14% of total
basic salary for Junior staff and 23.7% of total basic salary for senior staff each year in respect of current
service cost. The valuation was conducted by Z. Halim & Associates, a reputed Actuarial & Pension
Consultants in Bangladesh. Earlier, valuation was done as on 31 December 2013 by the same actuary and

next valuation is expected to be done as on 30 June 2019.

Actuarial assumption:
Salary growth 5%
Return on investment 6%
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17.00

17.01

17.02

17.03

Dividend payable

Unclaimed Dividend (Note - 17.02)
Fractional Dividend (Note - 17.03)

Dividend paid during the year

Opening balance
Add: Cash Dividend for the year 2016-2017/2015-2016

Less: Closing balance (Note - 17.02)
Dividend paid during the year

Liability for unclaimed dividend

Remained unclaimed on account of Individuals (Bangladeshi)

Dividend outstanding for the years:
2017

2016
2015
2014
2013
2012
2011
2010
2009
2008
2007 or before

Liability for unclaimed fractional dividend
Remained unclaimed on account of Individuals (Bangladeshi)

Dividend outstanding for the years:
2013
2012
2011
2010
1996

ANNUAL REPORT

2017 - 2018
Taka in' 000
As at 30 June
2018 2017
131,369 137,094
1,498 1,498
132,867 138,592
137,094 101,240
1,080,560 982,327
1,217,654 1,083,567
(131,369) (137,094)
1,086,285 946,473
15,487 -
18,136 38,752
15,370 15,599
32,774 32,944
15,451 15,569
8,681 8,718
11,384 11,407
6,076 6,085
1,745 1,748
853 854
5,412 5,418
131,369 137,094
202 202
136 136
105 105
14 14
1,041 1,041
1,498 1,498
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Taka in' 000
As at 30 June
2018 2017
18.00 Income tax payable / (receivable)
Opening Balance 141,575 211,266
Add: Provision made during the year:
For current year 1,117,951 665,503
Settlement of previous year's tax liability (39,753) (107,592)
1,219,773 769,177
Payment made during the year:
Tax deducted at source on supplying petroleum (U/S 52) (350,418) (252,938)
Tax deducted at source on interest on FDRs and other accounts (U/S 53F) (314,304) (188,921)
Tax deducted at source on import (U/S 53) (24,382) (25,743)
Advance tax (U/S 64) (150,000) (160,000)
(839,104) (627,602)
Closing Balance 380,669 141,575
19.00 Position of Pending Tax Assessments
(Recoverable)
Accounting | Assessment P:Y:::iﬁ::r Remarks
Year Year Department
Taka, 000
2001-02 2002-03 117,594 |Rectification U/S 173 - pending in the High Court.
2002-03 2003-04 111,045 |Rectification U/S 173 pending - AJCT reopened U/S 120
after tribunal order
2003-04 2004-05 97,610 |Rectification U/S 173 pending - AJCT reopened U/S 120
after tribunal order
2004-05 2005-06 37,901 |U/S 83(2)/ 82c/ 156/ 159/ 83(2)/ 156 - Rectification of
mistake U/S 173
2005-06 2006-07 8,640 |High Court against 82c - result in favour of POCL
2006-07 2007-08 (13,572) |Return submitted U/S 82BB
2007-08 2008-09 41,766 |High Court - result in favour of POCL
2008-09 2009-10 (295) |Return submitted U/S 82BB
2009-10 2010-11 - |Return submitted U/S 82BB
2010-11 2011-12 (125,116) |Return submitted U/S 82BB
2011-12 2012-13 - [Return submitted U/S 82BB
2012-13 2013-14 - [Return submitted U/S 82BB
2013-14 2014-15 - |Return submitted U/S 82BB
2014-15 2015-16 - [Return submitted U/S 82BB
2015-16 2016-17 - |Return submitted U/S 82BB
2016-17 2017-18 - |Return submitted U/S 82BB
275,574
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20.00 Deferred Tax

Deferred tax liability has been calculated below at the applicable tax rate on the difference between the
carrying value of fixed assets and their respective tax bases.

Taka in' 000
As at 30 June
2018 2017
Opening balance 188,031 175,733
Add: Provided / (adjusted) for the year 4,224 12,298
Closing balance 192,255 188,031
Reconciliation of Deferred tax liabilities/(assets)
Taka in '000
Taxable/

Carrying amount on

the date of statement Tax base (It)eductlble)
of financial position e_mporary
difference
Taka Taka Taka
(a) As at 30 June 2018
Property, plant and equipment 1,593,374 824,354 769,020
Deferred tax liability ( Tax Rate - 25% ) 192,255
(b) As at 30 June 2017
Property, plant and equipment 1,495,481 743,356 752,125
Deferred tax liability ( Tax Rate - 25% ) 188,031
21.00 Long Term Loan
Loan Account - Storage Tank at GDL 110,078 110,078
Equity Account - Storage Tank at GDL 73,385 73,385
183,463 183,463

Long term liabilities represents fund from Govt. of Bangladesh (GOB) for the construction of 7000 MT Jet -
A-1 & 7000 + 8000 MT HSD Storage tanks at Godnail Depot.GOB is providing the 60% of the fund as
Loan @ of 5% interest and Balance 40% as Equity. The Loan has been repayable in 20 years with a grace
period of 5 years.
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Taka in' 000
Year ended 30 June
2018 2017
22.00 Gross earnings on Petroleum Product
Turnover (Note 22.02) 177,696,494 146,559,303
Less: Cost of goods sold (Note 22.02) 174,689,828 144,101,599
Gross Earnings (Note 22.01) 3,006,666 2,457,705
22.01 Gross Earnings
L. Major Products Gro_ss Packaging Handling Qm Net earnings Net earnings
Earnings Gain/(Loss)
HOBC 179,637 - (188) (10,560) 168,889 79,762
Jet A-1 1,029,389 - (945) (10,396) 1,018,048 651,464
MS 280,243 - (236) (28,595) 251,412 244,998
SKO 23,321 - (77) (2,840) 20,404 30,617
HSD 1,050,298 - (3,436) 51,376 1,098,238 529,208
LDO 193 - - - 193 1,001
FO 134,291 - (555) 38,185 171,921 197,698
MTT 2,686 - (20) (406) 2,260 668
SBP 1,224 - (5) (758) 461 103
JBO 2,315 - (15) 1,084 3,384 3,465
Sub Total 2,703,597 - (5,477) 37,090 2,735,210 1,738,984
ii Minor Products
Lubs & Greases 275,016 (25,067) (11) - 249,938 107,985
LPG(Cylinders) 6,398 - 9) - 6,389 5,172
Bitumen 2,049 - (24) - 2,025 2,030
Other Products 19,606 (13) - - 19,593 14,976
Sub Total 303,069 (25,080) (44) - 277,945 130,163
Grand Total 3,006,666 (25,080) (5,521) 37,090 3,013,155 1,869,147
22.02 Turnover and Cost of Goods Sold

i. Major Products

Year ended 30 June 2018

Year ended 30 June 2017

Cost of goods

Cost of goods

Quantity Turnover sold Quantity Turnover sold
MT, 000 Tk, 000 Tk, 000 MT, 000 Tk, 000 Tk, 000

HOBC 80 9,298,451 9,118,813 65 7,509,128 7,347,743
Jet A-1 405 29,873,924 28,844,536 376 22,655,704 21,905,559
MS 101 11,852,971 11,572,727 83 9,695,656 9,458,552
SKO 33 2,647,125 2,623,804 42 3,392,135 3,364,524
HSD 1,473 109,238,835 || 108,188,537 1,228 91,494,336 90,572,572
LDO - 7,684 7,491 1 52,783 52,097
FO 238 10,819,611 10,685,320 182 8,248,544 8,137,643
MTT 8 739,981 737,295 6 550,882 548,458
SBP 2 264,047 262,823 1 114,768 113,943
JBO 7 687,098 684,784 6 658,567 656,764
Sub Total 2,347 175,429,727 172,726,130 1,989 144,372,503 142,157,856
ii Minor Products

Lubs & Greases 5 1,507,373 1,232,357 4 1,528,964 1,318,794
LPG 4 216,299 209,901 4 202,490 197,320
Bitumen 10 510,761 508,712 10 425,898 422,838
Other Products - 32,334 12,728 0 29,449 4,792
Sub Total 19 2,266,767 1,963,698 19 2,186,801 1,943,743
Grand Total 2,366 177,696,494 174,689,828 2,008 146,559,303 144,101,599
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23.00

23.01

23.02

23.03

24.00

25.00

25.01

Administrative, Selling and Distribution Expenses
Salaries, wages and benefits (Note - 23.01)
Depreciation (Note - 4.00)

Fuel and power

Stores and spares

Repairs and maintenance (Note - 23.02)

Rent

Travelling and conveyance

Aviation Service fees paid to Shell (Note - 33.00)
Printing and stationery

Insurance

Legal and professional fees

Rates and taxes

Advertisement

Communication expenses

Entertainment

Directors' fees and expenses (Note - 30)

BPC service charges

Audit fees

Other charges (Note - 23.03)

Recoveries of Service charges from ELBL

Salaries, wages and benefits
Salaries, wages and bonus
Welfare and benefits
Contribution to pension fund
Contribution to provident fund

Repairs and maintenance
Plant and Machinery
Building

Others

Other Charges

Common depot expenses (1/3 share )
Security expenses (Police / Ansar)
Casual Labour wages

AGM expenses

Miscellaneous expenses

Financial Expenses

Bank Charges

Interest expenses against product (BPC)*
Interest on WPPF & WF

* Interest expenses against product are charged by the BPC.

Other Operating Income
Sundry income (note - 25.01)
Profit from Product handling
Gain from tanker freight rates
Miscellaneous receipts

Sundry income - net

Land rent/Plant hire/service charges from Eastern
Rent receipts from Filling Station and Power Station
Service Charges receipts from Private Power Station

ANNUAL REPORT

2017 - 2018
Taka in' 000
Year ended 30 June
2018 2017
1,487,727 1,248,153
182,225 159,460
57,277 53,779
37,457 52,517
33,242 37,533
36,080 37,341
18,919 17,208
17,700 20,200
10,413 8,626
7,626 7,629
4,665 4,272
5,549 6,074
6,345 3,682
4,484 3,723
3,817 3,334
1,286 1,013
700 1,050
180 140
128,643 124,977
2,044,335 1,790,711
(500) (500)
2,043,835 1,790,211
335,978 462,444
633,239 576,414
487,567 173,007
30,943 36,288
1,487,727 1,248,153
19,945 22,520
9,973 11,260
3,324 3,753
33,242 37,533
5,019 4,863
14,813 12,156
89,904 88,520
3,258 2,985
15,649 16,453
128,643 124,977
9,469 3,303
151,087 128,184
59,814 48,939
220,370 180,426
187,010 146,841
550,826 364,027
- 55,862
24,748 21,723
762,584 588,453
354 354
12,636 17,380
174,020 129,107
187,010 146,841
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26.00

26.01

26.02

26.03

27.00

Operating Profit / (Loss) on Agro-Chemicals Trading
Sales

Cost of Sales:

Product Cost (Note - 26.01)

Other Cost - direct

Gross Profit

Administrative, selling and distribution expenses
Salaries, wages and benefits (Note - 26.02)
Depreciation (Note - 4.00)

Stores and spares

Advertisement

Fuel and power

Travelling and conveyance

Rent

Insurance

Repairs and maintenance (Note - 26.03)
Rates and taxes

Printing and stationery

Communication expenses

Entertainment

Other Charges

Operating profit / (loss)
Product cost

Taka in' 000

Year ended 30 June

2018 2017
786,578 817,862
(471,561) (461,906)
(117,775) (94,470)
(589,336) (556,376)
197,242 261,486
154,299 184,944
14,963 16,834
2,188 3,503
2,888 3,338
5,225 5,435
2,903 2,914
8,215 8,695
972 2,051
1,251 1,087
1,207 1,064
510 596
880 838
584 495
23,035 26,358
219,120 258,152
(21,878) 3,334

Year ended 30 June 2018

Year ended 30 June 2017

Amount(Tk.)

Amount(Tk.)

Qty(MT) in '000 Qty(MT) in '000
Opening Stock 1,216 181,623 1,331 249,910
Purchased/ Manufactured (Note -28.02) 4,031 611,522 3,978 393,619
5,247 793,145 5,309 643,529
Closing stock (Note - 28.02) 1,677 321,584 1,216 181,623
3,570 471,561 4,093 461,906
Salaries, wages and benefits
Salaries, wages and bonus 75,249 93,289
Other benefits 54,084 58,943
Contribution to pension and PF 24,966 32,712
154,299 184,944
Repairs and Maintenance
Plant and machinery 638 554
Building 588 511
Others 25 22
1,251 1,087
Non-Operating Income
Profit on disposal of fixed assets (Petroleum trading) 48 183
Profit on disposal of fixed assets (Agro-Chemical trading) 11 227
Interest on SND (Gross) for Agro Chemical Trading 10,000 10,000
Interest on SND (Gross) 1,951,095 1,151,432
Interest on FDR (Gross) 1,264,527 618,016
Disposal of Miscellaneous store 649 4,703
3,226,330 1,784,561
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28.05

28.06

29.00

2018

Analysis of Material Consumed (Agro-chemicals trading):
Year ended 30 June 2018 Year ended 30 June 2017

Qty. Tk. 000 Qty. Tk. 000
(a) Raw Materials- Furadan (MT) 2,136 179,431 2,522 155,481
(b) Packing Materials 33,516 28,717
212,947 184,198
Value of raw materials, packing materials and stores & spares consumed (Agro-chemicals trading):
July-2017 to June-2018 July-2016 to June-2017
Tk. 000 % Tk. 000 %
Import 169,956 79 148,284 79
Indigenous 45178 21 39,417 21
215,134 100 187,701 100
Raw and Packing Materials (Note-28.03) 212,947 184,198
Store and Spares 2,187 3,503

215,134 187,701

Value of purchases/ Manufactured of Agro-Chemicals Products

July-2017 to June-2018 July-2016 to June-2017
Tk. '000 % Tk. '000 %
Import 550,370 90 354,257 90
Indigenous 61,152 10 39,362 10
611,522 100 393,619 100
Agro-Chemical (Furadan)- Capacity and Production
Unit Capaclt){ (Single Production Qty. Increased / (Decreased) (%)
Shift) 30-Jun-18  30-Jun-17
MT 3,000 2,058 2,411 (14.64)

Reasons for variance:
Quantity of production decreased during the year due to fall in market demand.

Taka in' 000
Year ended 30 June
2018 2017
Earnings Per Share
(a) Earnings attributable to the ordinary 3,358,012 2,031,251
shareholders (Tk.)
(b) Number of ordinary shares at the end of the year 98,232,750 98,232,750
Earnings Per Share - basic Tk. 34.18 Tk. 20.68
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30.00 Directors' Fees and Expense
Details of Directors' fees & expenses paid during the year are as follows:
Name of the Directors and Managing Director. Gross Tax Deducted Net Paid
Tk. Tk. Tk.
Mr. Nazimuddin Chowdhury (Chairman) 58,650 7,650 51,000
Mr.Md.Akram Al Hossain (Ex.Chairman) 18,400 2,400 16,000
Mr. A.R.M. Nazmus Sakib 28,750 3,750 25,000
Mr. Mohammed Igbal 36,800 4,800 32,000
Mr. Md. Ekhlasur Rahman 27,600 3,600 24,000
Mr.S.M.Mozammel Hauge 47,150 6,150 41,000
Mr. Moha, Sher Ali 59,800 7,800 52,000
Mrs Farzana Mamtaz 5,750 750 5,000
Mr. Md. Arifuzzaman Miah Tutul 77,050 10,050 67,000
Mr. Nurul Amin 5,750 750 5,000
Mr. Md. Abdul Awwal 67,850 8,850 59,000
Mr.Md. Altaf Hussain Chowdhury 18,400 2,400 16,000
Mr. Md. Masudur Rahman ( MD ) 77,050 10,050 67,000
Mr. Ahmed Jamal Khan Chowdhuri 34,500 4,500 30,000
563,500 73,500 490,000
Taka in' 000
Particulars Year ended 30 June
2018 2017
Directors' Fees paid-Gross 564 362
Meeting expenses 723 651
1,286 1,013
Remuneration of MD, Managers and Officers:
Taka in ' 000 Taka in ' 000
July-2017 to June-2018 July-2016 to June-2017
MD Managers Officers MD Managers Officers
Remuneration:
Salary, allowances 2007 99,433 105,200 1912 96,537 122,302
House rent allowance:
House rent 1,075 26,126 58,666 1,024 25,365 44,379
Other utilities 320 6,082 7,545 305 4,055 5,325
1,395 32,208 66,211 1,329 29,420 49,704
Leave encashment 446 12,643 2,630 425 12,041 31,199
Provident fund 267 5,471 8,324 254 5,210 6,422
4,115 149,755 182,365 3,920 143,208 209,627
Number of Employees 1 60 212 1 60 226

31.02

31.03

31.04

House Rent
Accommodation

The Managing Director, Managers and Officers are paid cash allowance.
6 Managers are provided with free furnished accommodation.
The Managing Directors and Departmental Heads are provided with free use of Company's car

Transport
subject to limit.
Other Managers are paid cash assistance, subject to limit.
Officers are paid cash allowances.

Telephone

subject to limit.

Residential telephone for mainly Company's business- for Managing Director and Managers,
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31.05 Medical The Managing Director, Managers and Officers are provided with free medical
facilities according to company policy.
31.06 Insurance The Managing Director, Managers and Officers are provided with coverage for
group insurance according to the company policy.
31.07 Remuneration The Directors other than the Managing Director, who is an ex-officio director, are

not paid any remuneration except for fees and expenses in connection with

attending to Company's Board Meeting.

Taka in' 000
Year ended 30 June
2018 2017
32.00 Employees
Number of Employees whose salary was Tk. 3,000 below - -
Number of Employees whose salary was Tk. 3,000 or above 1,065 1,110
1,065 1,110
33.00 Expenditure in foreign currency at equivalent BDT
Aviation service fee to Shell International Petroleum Company Ltd. (SIPCL) 17,700 20,200
17,700 20,200

34.00 Related Party Transactions

During the year, the company carried out a number of transaction with related parties in the normal course
of business and on an arms length basis. The name of these related parties, nature of transactions and

balance as at 30.06.18 in accordance with the provisions of BAS-24 are presented below :

Name of the Parties Relationship Nature of Transactions

Balance as on 30

June 18
Bangladesh Petroleum Corp.(BPC) | Parent Concern Multiple Business 106,202,134 (Cr)
Bangladesh Petroleum Corp.(BPC) | Parent Concern Multiple Business 92,469,846 (Dr)
Eastern Refinery Limited Subsidiary of BPC. | Product Refine Nil
Eastern Lubricants Blenders Ltd. Subsidiary of BPC. | Blending of Products 71,335 (Cr)
Eastern Lubricants Blenders Ltd. Subsidiary of BPC. | Blending of Products 5,000 (Dr)
Meghna Petroleum Ltd. Subsidiary of BPC | Product Exchange 1,042,240 (Dr)
Jamuna Oil Comp. Ltd. Subsidiary of BPC. | Product Exchange 1,625,359 (Dr)
Jamuna Oil Comp. Ltd. Subsidiary of BPC. | Product Exchange 127,959(Cr)
Liquified Petroleum Gas Ltd. Subsidiary of BPC. | Product Supply 16,952 (Cr)
Details of transactions
Provided Adjusted
Name of the Parties Opening Balances during the during the|| Closing Balance
year year

Bangladesh Petroleum Corp.(BPC) 83,117,061 (Cr) 169,243,853 || 146,158,780 || 106,202,134 (Cr)
Bangladesh Petroleum Corp.(BPC) 76,855,972 (Dr.) 34,749,368 || 19,135,494 92,469,846 (Dr)
Eastern Refinery Ltd. Nil - - Nil
Eastern Lubricants Blenders Ltd. 94,183 (Cr) 428,683 405,835 71,335 (Cr)
Eastern Lubricants Blenders Ltd. 5,000 (Dr) - - 5,000 (Dr)
Meghna Petroleum Ltd. 10,53,774 (Dr.) 559,054 570,588 10,42,240 (Dr)
Jamuna Oil Company Ltd. 14,79,228 (Dr) 684,304 538,173 16,25,359 (Dr)
Jamuna Oil Company Ltd. 171,622 (Cr) 4,463 48,126 127,959(Cr)
Liquified Petroleum Gas Ltd. 17,949 (Cr) 122,587 123,584 16,952 (Cr)
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Taka in ' 000
30-Jun-18 30-Jun-17
35.00 Contingent Assets
Interest realizable for delayed payment from BIMAN & BCIC 6,431,189 5,289,001
Claims realizable from Bangladesh Railway 13,853 13,853
Amount realizable from BPC on account of sale of Jet-A1 to the foreign Airlines. 43,589 43,589
6,488,631 5,346,443
36.00 Contingent liabilities
i) Guarantees issued by the company's bankers to third parties on counter
indemnities given by the company against the bankers limit at Tk. One Crore 497 497
secured by hypothecation over the company's inventories and book debts.
ii) Confirmed irrevocable letters of credit (net of margin) opened by the banks-
having bankers limit at Tk. 10 crores, secured by hypothecation over the 92,300 13,363
inventories and book debts of the company.
92,797 13,860
37.00 Capital Commitments
Authorized but not contracted 683,748 514,463
Authorized and Contracted for but not provided-pending execution 1,608,738 1,637,010
Order for local supplies services pending execution 34,830 49,300
38.00 Net asset value per Share 2,327,316 2,200,773
The composition of Net Assets value per share is given below :
i) Net Assets Value on the reporting date (Taka) 12,454,266 10,176,814
ii) Number of Ordinary shares at the end of year 98,232,750 98,232,750
iii) Weighted Average Number of Ordinary shares during the year 98,232,750 98,232,750
Net Asset Value ( NAV ) per share Tk. 126.78 Tk. 103.60
39.00 Operating cash flow per share
The composition of Operating Cash Inflow/(Outflow)
value per share is given below :
i) Operating Cash Inflow/(Outflow) during the year (Tk) (3,572,762) 11,435,072
ii) Number of Ordinary shares at the end of year 98,232,750 98,232,750
Operating Cash Inflow / (Outflow) per share Tk. (36.37) Tk. 116.42
40.00 Reconciliation of net income with cash flows from operating activities
Net profit before tax 4,480,187 2,709,052
Adjustments:
Depreciations 197,188 176,294
(Gain)/loss on sale of PPE (59) (410)
4,677,316 2,884,936
(Increase)/Decrease in Current Assets:
Inventories (6,278,961) (1,524,707)
Accounts receivable excluding FDR and SND interest (6,722,406) (3,300,262)
Due from affiliated companies (15,748,471) (17,140,570)
Advances, deposits and pre-payments (5,208) (13,904)
Increase/(Decrease) in Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable (2,423,131) 11,321,136
Supplies and expenses payable 273,006 713,932
Due to affiliated companies 23,017,565 19,682,683
Other liabilities 516,385 (452,978)
(7,371,221) 9,285,330
Income Tax paid (878,857) (735,194)
Net cash flow from operating activities (3,572,762) 11,435,072
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41.00 The quantum of potential liability at the reporting date for the value of employees unutilized earned leave

42.00

43.00

43.01

43.02

43.03

43.04

has neither been ascertained nor any provision therefor been made in the financial statements.

Events after reporting period
The Board of Directors in their meeting held on 10 November 2018 recommended 130% cash dividend
(Tk.127,70,25,750.00) @ Tk.13 per share for the year ended 30 June 2018.

Financial risk management

The Company management has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Company's risk management framework. The Company's risk management policies are established to
identify and analyze the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to
monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies, procedures and systems are reviewed
regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities. This note presents
information about the Company's exposure to each of the above risks, the Company's objectives, policies
and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Company's management of capital. The
company has exposure at the following areas of risk.

a) Credit risk
b) Liquidity risk
c) Market risk

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of a financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company's receivables.
Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis.
In monitoring credit risk, debtors are grouped according to their risk profile, i.e. their legal status, financial
condition, ageing profile etc. Accounts receivable are related to sale of petroleum and agro-chemical
produced. The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each financial
asset in the statement of financial position. Credit sales as compared to the total sales are insignificant.
Government institutions are allowed to purchase on credit.

Exposure to credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure
to credit risk at the reporting date was:

Taka in ' 000 Taka in ' 000
30 June 2018 30 June 2017
Accounts receivables 19,599,875 16,021,443
Due from affiliated companies 95,142,445 79,393,974
Advance, deposit & prepayments 181,546 176,338
Cash and bank balance 34,346,452 35,612,128
149,270,318 131,203,883
Ageing of accounts receivables

Less than 6 months 1,496,320 5,666,192
Over 6 months but less than 12 months 5,670,026 2,376,582
Over 1 year but less than 2 years 2,195,214 7,320,693
Over 2 years 10,238,315 657,976
19,599,875 16,021,443

Ageing of due from affiliated entities/ companies
Less than 1 years 29,668,919 25,659,413
Over 1 years but less than 2 years 2,084,363 3,897,079
Over 2 years but less than 5 years 4,036,932 4,036,932
Over 5 years but less than 10 years 15,277,736 15,262,227
Over 10 years 44,074,495 30,538,323
95,142,445 79,393,974

110



ANNUAL REPORT
2017 - 2018

43.05 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall
due. The Company's approach to manage liquidity (cash and cash equivalents) is to ensure, as far as
possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal
and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company's
reputation. Typically, the Company ensures that it has sufficient cash and cash equivalents to meet
expected operational expenses, including financial obligations through preparation of the cash flow
forecast, prepared based on time line of payment of the financial obligation and accordingly arrange
for sufficient liquidity/fund to make the expected payment within due date.

The following are the contractual or legal maturities of financial liabilities :

Taka in' 000

As at June 30
2018 2017
Liability for trading supplies and services 35,445,971 37,869,101
Liabilities for supplies and expenses 11,333,126 11,060,120
Customers' and agents' credit balances 1,988,660 1,693,304
Employee's pension fund 172,388 75,432
Employee's fund others 44,848 48,591
Security deposits 156,160 151,081
Tax deducted at source 89 1,043
Employees' personal accounts 35,843 31,970
Liabilities for Capital Expenditure 40,007 31,884
Workers' Profit Participation and Welfare Funds 242,839 149,622
Others 608,398 589,920
50,068,329 51,702,068

43.06 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that any change in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest
rates will affect the Company's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The
objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within
acceptable parameters.

43.07 Exposure to currency risk
There was no exposure to foreign currency risk on the reporting date.
43.08 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that arises due to changes in interest rates on borrowings. However the
company do not have any outstanding bank borrowings on the reporting date thus they are not
exposed to any interest rate risk. But the company has taken a loan from the Govt.of Bangladesh of
BDT 110,078,000 with a fixed interest rate of 5 %.
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44.00 Standards adopted but not yet effective

The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB) has adopted following new standards
and amendments to standards. All previously adopted reporting standards are consistently applied

by the Company to the extent relevant for the Company.

New standards

Summary of the requirements

Possible impact on
financial statements

BFRS 9 Financial Instruments

BFRS 9, published in July 2014, replaces the
existing guidance in BAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.
BFRS 9 includes revised guidance on the
classification and measurement of financial
instruments, a new expected credit loss model
for calculating impairment on financial assets,
and new general hedge accounting
requirements. It also carries forward the
guidance on recognition and derecognition of
financial instruments from BAS 39.

BFRS 9 is effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018, with early
adoption permitted.

The Company is
assessing the
potential impact on its
financial statements
resulting from the
application of BFRS 9.

BFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers

BFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive
framework for determining whether, how much
and when revenue is recognized. It replaces
existing revenue recognition guidance, including
BAS 18 Revenue, BAS 11 Construction
Contracts and BFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty
Programmes.

BFRS 15 is effective for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018,
with early adoption permitted.

The Company s
assessing the potential
impact on its financial
statements resulting
from the application of
BFRS 15.

2

Mohiuddin Ahmed
Company Secretary

Md. Masudur Rahman
CEO & Managing Director

Dr. Mohd. Sher Ali
Director

Mohammad Igbal
Director
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PADMA OIL COMPANY LIMITED

(A Subsidiary of Bangladesh Petroleum Corporation)

Registered Office:

PADMA BHABAN, Strand Road, Sadarghat, Chattogram-4000, Bangladesh
Phone: + 88 031 614235-7, 637748-9 (PABX). Fax: + 88 031 618312 + 88 031 635524
e-mail: md@pocl.gov.bd, share@pocl.gov.bd, web: www.pocl.gov.bd



